
           
 

AGENDA
ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING
November 13, 2018–8:30 a.m.

Escambia County Central Office Complex
3363 West Park Place, Room 104

             
1. Call to Order.  
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  
 

3. Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement.   
 

4. Approval of Minutes.  
 

A.   RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the October 1, 2018, Planning Board Rezoning
Meeting.

 

5. Acceptance of Rezoning Planning Board Meeting Packet.  
 

6. Quasi-judicial Process Explanation.  
 

7. Public Hearings.  
 

A.   Case #: Z-2018-14
Applicant: Catalina Filip, Agent for Fil's Group, LLC., Owner
Address: 8925 Gulf Beach Highway
Property
Size:

2.79 +/- acres

From: MDR, Medium Density Residential district (10 du/acre)
To: HC/LI, Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district (25

du/acre)
 

B.   Case #: Z-2018-15
Applicant: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, Agent for Gulf Beach Self Storage, Inc.

Owner



Address: 8939 Gulf Beach Highway
Property
Size:

4.29 (+/-) acres

From: HC/LI, Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district (25 du/acre)
and MDR, Medium Density Residential district (10 du/acre)

To: HC/LI-NA, Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district,
prohibiting the subsequent establishment of any microbreweries,
microdistilleries, microwineries, bars, nightclubs, or adult
entertainment uses (25 du/acre)

 

C.   Case #: Z-2018-16
Applicant: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, Agent for James Campbell, Owner
Address: 1250 Fairchild Street
Property
Size:

4 (+/-) acres

From: HC/LI, Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district (25
du/acre)

To: HDR, High Density Residential district (18 du/acre)
 

D.   Case #: Z-2018-17
Applicant: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, agent for RNL Investment Group, LLC,

Owner
Address: 8891 Burning Tree Rd
Property
Size:

3.52 (+/-) acres and 7.56 (+/-) acres

Northern Portion:
From: Rec, Recreation district (du density limited to vested

development)
To: MDR, Mediuim Density residential (10 du/acre)

Southern Portion:
From: Rec, Recreation district (du density limited to vested

development)
To: Com, Commercial district (25 du/acre)

 

E.   Case #: Z-2018-18
Applicant: Kshitij Patel, Agent for Michael and Tammy Matcke, Owners
Address: 5950 West Nine Mile Road
Property Size: 0.97 (+/-) acres
From: LDR, Low Density Residential district (four du/acre)
To: HDMU, High Density Mixed-use district (25 du/acre)



 

F.   That the Planning Board review and make recommendation to the Board of
County Commisioners (BCC) on the following Vested Rights case:
Case No.: VRD-2018-01
Project Address: 3411 John Street
Property Reference No.: 16-2S-30-1001-330-004
Zoning District: HDMU, High Density Mixed-use district (25 du/acre)
FLU Category: MU-U, Mixed-Use Urban
Vested Rights for: Allow a MH in HDMU zoning
Applicant: Tanaya Rosa, Agent for Keith L. Davis, Owner

 

8. Adjournment.  
 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   4. A.           
Meeting Date: 11/08/2018  

Agenda Item:
RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the Meeting Resume'
Minutes of the October 1, 2018, Planning Board Rezoning Meeting.

Attachments
Draft October 1, 2018 Planning Board Rezoning Meeting Minutes



D R A F T
RESUMÉ OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD QUASI-JUDICIAL REZONING

 October 1, 2018

CENTRAL OFFICE COMPLEX
3363 WEST PARK PLACE, BOARD CHAMBERS

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
(8:35 A.M. – 10:29 A.M.)

Present: Reid Rushing   
  Jay Ingwell   
  Timothy Pyle   
  Patty Hightower   
  Alan Gray   
  Eric Fears   
  William Clay   
  Stephen Opalenik   
Absent: Wayne Briske, Chairman
Staff Present: Allyson Cain, Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning

Andrew Holmer, Division Manager, Planning & Zoning
Horace Jones, Director, Development Services
John Fisher, Senior Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning
Kayla Meador, Sr Office Assistant
Meredith Crawford, Assistant County Attorney

 

 

               

1.  Call to Order.
 

2.  Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.
 

3.  Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement. 
 
  Motion by Alan Gray, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to approve the proof of publication and to waive the reading of
the legal advertisement. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 
 

4.  Approval of Minutes.
 

A.     RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the August 7, 2018  Planning Board Rezoning Meeting.

  

 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to approve the Rezoning Planning Board meeting minutes
from August 7, 2018. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 
 

5.  Acceptance of Rezoning Planning Board Meeting Packet.
 
 



  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by Alan Gray 

Motion was made to accept the Rezoning Planning Board meeting packet for
October 1, 2018. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 
 

6.  Quasi-judicial Process Explanation.
 

7.  Public Hearings.
 

A.     Case #: Z-2018-09
Applicant: Ronald C. Williams, Owner
Address: 1900 Block Tate Rd
Property
Size:

1.66 (+/-) acres

From: LDR, Low Density
Residential district (4
du/acre)

To: LDMU, Low Density
Mixed-use district (7 du/acre)

Tim Pyle acknowledged visiting the site. 

No planning board member acknowledged any ex parte communication regarding
this item. 

No planning board member abstained from voting on this matter due to any conflict
of interest.

  

 
  Motion by Alan Gray, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to recommend approval and waive the locational criteria. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 
 

B.     Case #: Z-2018-11
Applicant: Gilbert Nelson, Owner
Address: Dogwood Place
Property
Size:

9.1 (+/-) acres

From: HDMU, High Density
Mixed-use district (25
du/acre)

To: Com, Commercial district
(25 du/acre)

  

 
  Motion by Alan Gray, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion made to accept withdraw letter from Applicant. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 
 
  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to continue the case to next PB meeting. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 



 
Other: Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 

 

C.     Case #: Z-2018-13
Applicant: Robert O. Beasley, Agent for

Crosby Holdings, LLC.,
Owner

Address: 2335 Klinger Street 
Property
Size:

0.46 (+/-) acres

From: MDR, Medium Density
Residential district (10
du/acre)

To: HDMU, High Density
Mixed-use district (25
du/acre)

No planning board member acknowledged visiting the site. 

No planning board member acknowledged any ex parte communication regarding
this item. 

No planning board member abstained from voting on this matter due to any conflict
of interest.

  

 
  Motion by Alan Gray, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to recommend approval to the BCC. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 
 

D.     A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of Bridlewood Subdivision, a Planned Unit
Development

That the Board review the development plan for Bridlewood residential subdivision,
a Planned Unit Development (PUD), and confirm consistency of the plan with Land
Development Code (LDC) requirements prior to transmittal of a recommendation to
the Board of  County Commissioners (BCC) to review and consider the plan for a
final decision.

No planning board member acknowledged visiting the site. 

No planning board member acknowledged any ex parte communication regarding
this item. 

No planning board member abstained from voting on this matter due to any conflict
of interest. 

  

 
  Motion by Alan Gray, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to recommend approval of the PUD to the BCC. 
  Vote: 4 - 2 Approved
 

Voted No: Jay Ingwell 
  William Clay 
Other: Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 

 

8.  Adjournment.
 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   7. A.           
Meeting Date: 11/08/2018  
CASE : Z-2018-14
APPLICANT: Catalina Filip, Agent for Fil's Group, LLC., Owner 

ADDRESS: 8925 Gulf Beach Highway 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 33-2S-31-2000-120-001
FUTURE LAND USE: MU-U, Mixed-Use Urban  
DISTRICT: 2  
OVERLAY DISTRICT: AIPD-1, APZ-2 

BCC MEETING DATE: 12/06/2018 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: MDR, Medium Density Residential district (10 du/acre)

TO: HC/LI, Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district (25 du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla.
1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

APPROVAL CONDITIONS

Criterion a., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with Comprehensive Plan
The proposed zoning is consistent with the future land use (FLU) category as prescribed
in LDC Chapter 3, and with all other applicable goals, objectives, and policies of the
Comprehensive Plan.  If the rezoning is required to properly enact a proposed FLU map
amendment transmitted for state agency review, the proposed zoning is consistent with
the proposed FLU and conditional to its adoption.

FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories. General descriptions, range of allowable uses,
and residential densities and non-residential intensities for all future land use categories
in Escambia County are outlined below.
FLU 1.5.1 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas. To promote the efficient
use of existing public roads, utilities, and service infrastructure, the County will



encourage the redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize development
densities and intensities located in the MU-S, MU-U, Commercial, and Industrial Future
Land Use categories (with the exception of residential development).

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment to HC/LI is consistent with the intent and purpose of Future
Land Use category MU-U as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1. The MU-U FLU is intended for an
intense mix of residential and non-residential uses while promoting compatible infill
development and the separation of urban and suburban land uses within the category as
a whole. The listed Range of Allowable Uses includes residential, retail and services,
professional office, light industrial, recreational facilities, public, civic and limited
agriculture. The amendment is also consistent with the intent of FLU 1.5.1, by making
use of the existing public roads and the availability of utilities and service infrastructure.

Criterion b., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with The Land Development Code
The proposed zoning is consistent with the purpose and intent and with any other zoning
establishment provisions prescribed by the proposed district in Chapter 3.

Sec. 3-2.7 Medium Density Residential district (MDR).
(a) Purpose. The Medium Density Residential (MDR) district establishes appropriate
areas and land use regulations for residential uses at medium densities within suburban
or urban areas. The primary intent of the district is to provide for residential
neighborhood development in an efficient urban pattern of well-connected streets and at
greater dwelling unit density than the Low Density Residential district. Residential uses
within the MDR district are limited to single-family and two-family dwellings. The district
allows non-residential uses that are compatible with suburban and urban residential
neighborhoods.

Sec. 3-2.11 Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district (HC/LI).

(a) Purpose. The Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial (HC/LI) district establishes
appropriate areas and land use regulations for a complementary mix of industrial uses
with a broad range of commercial activities. The primary intent of the district is to allow
light manufacturing, large-scale wholesale and retail uses, major services, and other
more intense uses than allowed in the Commercial district. The variety and intensity of
non-residential uses within the HC/LI district is limited by the applicable FLU and their
compatibility with surrounding uses. All commercial and industrial operations are limited
to the confines of buildings and not allowed to produce undesirable effects on other
property. To retain adequate area for commercial and industrial activities, other uses
within the district are limited.
(b) Permitted uses. Permitted uses within the HC/LI district are limited to the following:

(1) Residential. Any residential uses outside of the Industrial (I) future land use category
but if within the Commercial (C) future land use category (and not the principal
single-family dwelling on an existing lot of record), only as part of a predominantly
commercial development; and excluding new or expanded manufactured (mobile) home
parks and subdivisions. See also conditional uses in this district.



parks and subdivisions. See also conditional uses in this district.

(2) Retail sales. Retail sales, including Low-THC marijuana dispensing facilities, sales of
alcoholic beverages, sales of automotive fuels, and sales of new and used automobiles,
motorcycles, boats, and manufactured (mobile) homes.

(3) Retail services.
a. Car washes, automatic or manual, full service or self-serve.
b. Child care facilities.
c. Hotels, motels and all other public lodging, including boarding and rooming houses.
d. Personal services, including those of beauty shops, health clubs, pet groomers, dry
cleaners and tattoo parlors.
e. Professional services, including those of realtors, bankers, accountants, engineers,
architects, dentists, physicians, and attorneys.
f. Rental of automobiles, trucks, utility trailers and recreational vehicles.
g. Repair services, including appliance repair, furniture refinishing and upholstery, watch
and jewelry repair, small engine and motor services, and major motor vehicle and boat
service and repair, but excluding outdoor work or storage.
h. Restaurants and brewpubs, including on-premises consumption of alcoholic
beverages, drive-in and drive-through service, and brewpubs with the distribution of
on-premises produced alcoholic beverages for off-site sales. The parcel boundary of any
restaurant or brewpub with drive-in or drive-through service shall be at least 200 feet
from any LDR or MDR zoning district unless separated by a 50-foot or wider street
right-of-way.
i. Taxi and limousine services.
See also conditional uses in this district.

(4) Public and civic.
a. Broadcast stations with satellite dishes and antennas, including towers.
b. Cemeteries, including family cemeteries.
c. Community service facilities, including auditoriums, libraries, museums, and
neighborhood centers.
d. Educational facilities, including preschools, K-12, colleges, and vocational schools.
e. Emergency service facilities, including law enforcement, fire fighting, and medical
assistance.
f. Funeral establishments.
g. Homeless shelters.
h. Hospitals.
i. Offices for government agencies or public utilities.
j. Places of worship.
k. Public utility structures, including telecommunications towers, but excluding industrial
uses not otherwise permitted.
See also conditional uses in this district.
(Ord. No. 2015-24, § 1, 7-7-15)

(5) Recreation and entertainment.
a. Commercial entertainment facilities, indoor or outdoor, including movie theatres,
amusement parks, and stadiums, but excluding motorsports facilities. Carnival-type



amusements shall be at least 500 feet from any residential district. Bars, nightclubs, and
adult entertainment are prohibited in areas with the zoning designation HC/LI-NA or
areas zoned ID-CP or ID-1 prior to adoption of HC/LI zoning.
b. Commercial recreation facilities, passive or active, including those for walking, hiking,
bicycling, camping, recreational vehicles, swimming, skateboarding, bowling, court
games, field sports, and golf, but excluding off-highway vehicle uses and outdoor
shooting ranges. Campgrounds and recreational vehicle parks require a minimum lot
area of five acres.
c. Marinas, private and commercial.
d. Parks, with or without permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting.
See also conditional uses in this district.

(6) Industrial and related. The following industrial and related uses, except within MU-S.
a. Light industrial uses, including research and development, printing and binding,
distribution and wholesale warehousing, and manufacturing, all completely within the
confines of buildings and without adverse off-site impacts.
b. Marinas, industrial.
c. Microbreweries, microdistilleries, and microwineries, except in areas with the zoning
designation HC/LI-NA.
See also conditional uses in this district.

(7) Agricultural and related.
a. Food produced primarily for personal consumption by the producer, but no farm
animals.
b. Nurseries and garden centers, including adjoining outdoor storage or display of plants.
c. Veterinary clinics, excluding outside kennels.
See also conditional uses in this district.

(8) Other uses. Within MU-S, outside storage is permitted only when adequately
screened per LDC regulations.
a. Billboards structures, excluding areas zoned ID-CP, GBD, or GID prior to adoption of
HC/LI zoning.
b. Building or construction trades shops and warehouses, including on-site outside
storage.
c. Bus leasing and rental facilities, not allowed within MU-S.
d. Deposit boxes for donation of used items when placed as an accessory structure on
the site of a charitable organization.
e. Outdoor adjacent display of plants by garden shops and nurseries.
f. Outdoor sales.
g. Outdoor storage of trailered boats and operable recreational vehicles, excluding
repair, overhaul or salvage activities.
h. Parking garages and lots, commercial, not allowed within MU-S.
i. Sales and outdoor display of prefabricated storage sheds.
j. Self-storage facilities, including vehicle rental as an accessory use.

(c) Conditional uses. Through the conditional use process prescribed in Chapter 2, the
BOA, or the BCC as noted, may conditionally allow the following uses within the HC/LI
district:



(1) Residential. Caretaker residences not among the permitted uses of the district and for
permitted non-residential uses.

(2) Retail services. Restaurants not among the permitted uses of the district.

(3) Public and civic. Cinerators.
(4) Recreation and entertainment.
a. Motorsports facilities on lots 20 acres or larger.
b. Off-highway vehicle commercial recreation facilities on lots 20 acres or larger.
c. Shooting ranges, outdoor.

(5) Industrial and related. The following industrial and related uses, except within MU-S:
a. Asphalt and concrete batch plants if within the Industrial (I) future land use category
and within areas zoned GID prior to adoption of HC/LI zoning.
b. Borrow pits and reclamation activities 20 acres minimum and (subject to local permit
and development review requirements per Escambia County Code of Ordinances, Part I,
Chapter 42, article VIII, and land use regulations in Part III, the Land Development Code,
chapter 4.) *Borrow pits are prohibited on land zoned GBD, GID, and WMU prior to the
adoption of the HC/LI zoning.
c. Salvage yards not otherwise requiring approval as solid waste processing facilities.
d. Solid waste processing facilities, including solid waste collection points, solid waste
transfer facilities, materials recovery facilities, recovered materials processing facilities,
recycling facilities and operations, resource recovery facilities and operations, and
volume reduction plants.

The conditional use determination for any of these solid waste facilities shall be made by
the BCC in lieu of any hearing before the BOA. The applicant shall submit a site
boundary survey, development plan, description of anticipated operations, and evidence
that establishes each of the following conditions in addition to those prescribed in
Chapter 2:
1. Trucks have access to and from the site from adequately wide collector or arterial
streets and do not use local residential streets.
2. The scale, intensity, and operation of the use will not generate unreasonable noise,
traffic, objectionable odors, dust, or other potential nuisances or hazards to contiguous
properties.
3. The processing of materials will be completely within enclosed buildings unless
otherwise approved by the BCC.
4. The plan includes appropriate practices to protect adjacent land and resources,
minimize erosion, and treat stormwater; landscaping and buffering for adjacent uses;
hours of operation; methods to comply with maximum permissible noise levels; means of
access control to prevent illegal dumping; and plans for materials storage. (6)
Agricultural and related. Kennels or animal shelters not interior to veterinary clinics.

(7) Other uses.
a. Structures of permitted uses exceeding the district structure height limit.
b. Heliports.
(e) Location criteria. All new non-residential uses proposed within the HC/LI district that



are not part of a planned unit development or not identified as exempt by district
regulations shall be on parcels that satisfy at least one of the following location criteria:
(1) Parcel previously zoned GBD within the MU-S FLU along Hwy 29 or SR 95A. Parcels
previously zoned GBD and within the MU-S future land use category which are located
along and directly fronting U.S. Highway 29 or State Road 95A
(2) Proximity to intersection.  Along an arterial street and within one-quarter mile of its
intersection with an arterial street.
(3) Site design.  Along an arterial street, no more than one-half mile from its intersection
with an arterial street, and all of the following site design conditions:
a.  Not abutting a RR, LDR or MDR zoning district
b.  Any intrusion into a recorded residential subdivision is limited to a corner lot
c.  A system of service roads or shared access is provided to the maximum extent
feasible given the lot area, lot shape, ownership patterns, and site and street
characteristics.
d.  Adverse impacts to any adjoining residential uses are minimized by placing the more
intensive elements of the use, such as solid waste dumpsters and truck
loading/unloading areas, furthest from
the residential uses.
e.  Location in an area where already established non-residential uses are otherwise
consistent with the HC/LI, and where the new use would constitute infill development of
similar intensity as the conforming development on surrounding parcels.  Additionally,
the location would promote compact development and not contribute to or promote strip
commercial development.
(4) Documented compatibility.  A compatibility analysis prepared by the applicant
provides competent substantial evidence of unique circumstances regarding the parcel
or use that were not anticipated by the alternative criteria, and the proposed use will be
able to achieve long-term compatibility with existing and potential uses.  Additionally, the
following conditions exist:
a.  The parcel has not been rezoned by the landowner from the mixed-use, commercial,
or industrial zoning assigned by the county.
b.  If the parcel is within a county redevelopment district, the use will be consistent with
the district’s adopted redevelopment plan, as reviewed and recommended by the
Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA).

Sec. 4-4.5 Airport and airfield planning districts.
(b) Military Airfield Influence Planning Districts.
(5) AIPD-1 requirements. Airfield Influence Planning District 1 (AIPD-1) defines areas of
greatest protection for an airfield. AIPD-1 lies within a boundary connecting the
outermost limits of an installation’s clear zones, accident potential zones, or other areas
necessary to achieve adequate protections. The following requirements apply to all lands
within an AIPD-1 district:
a. Prohibited concentrations of population. Any use at such a scale that gatherings
concentrating more than 25 people per acre and within a structure would be expected on
a regular basis is prohibited. Such uses include sports stadiums, amphitheaters,
auditoriums, clubhouses, churches, schools, hospitals, assisted living facilities, hotels
and motels, restaurants, nightclubs and other establishments.
b. Residential density. Residential density is limited by the applicable zone or area with
the AIPD according to the following: 



1. Clear zones. Areas designated as "Clear Zone" are allowed no residential density
except vested single-family dwellings on existing lots of record.
2. Area A. Areas designated as "Area A" are allowed no residential density except vested
single-family dwellings on existing lots of record.
3. APZ-1. Areas designated as "Accident Potential Zone 1" (APZ-1) and aligned with
airfield runways are allowed no residential density except vested single-family dwellings on
existing lots of record. All other APZ-1 areas are limited to one dwelling unit per 2.5 acres.
4. APZ-2. Areas designated as "Accident Potential Zone 2" (APZ-2) and aligned with
airfield runways are limited to two dwelling units per acre. All other APZ-2 areas are limited
to three dwelling units per acre.
5. Area B. Areas designated as "Area B" are limited to three dwelling units per acre and
only subject to the minimum lot area of the applicable zoning district.

FINDINGS 
The proposed amendment is not consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land
Development Code. The applicant is requesting a rezoning for their split zoned parcel to
HC/LI that is currently operating as a used cars sale on the HC/LI portion and a
non-complaint salvage yard on the MDR portion. To have a salvage yard the MDR
portion must be rezoned to HC/LI and have a Conditional Use approval from the Board
of Adjustments (BOA). This site has a Code Enforcement violation for a salvage yard on
the current MDR zoning area. The split zoned parcel is currently already zoned HC/LI
along the Gulf Beach Highway northern part of the parcel to a depth to of 175± to the
south where there is a Used Auto Sales.  The remaining 500± of the parcel to the south
is zoned MDR and surrounded by unimproved right-of-way along the east and south
side of the parcel. The applicant is wanting to expand their operation on the parcel to
allow more used car sales and a salvage yard, however it must be noted the existing
use is a nonconforming use. The proposed property would also have to meet the
Locational Criteria by submitting a Compatibility Analysis and proving that the new use
would be compatible with the surrounding uses. No compatibility analysis was submitted
for the new use nor does staff find the property meeting any of the site designs of
the locational criteria. Currently the property falls in the APZ-2 area which prohibits any
concentration of people living in the area.

Criterion c., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Compatible with surrounding uses
All the permitted uses of the proposed zoning, not just those anticipated by the rezoning
applicant, are compatible, as defined in Chapter 6, with the surrounding uses.  The uses
of any surrounding undeveloped land shall be considered the permitted uses of the
applicable district. Compatibility is not considered with potential conditional uses or with
any nonconforming or unapproved uses.  Also, in establishing the compatibility of a
residential use, there is no additional burden to demonstrate the compatibility of specific
residents or activities protected by fair housing law.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is not compatible with surrounding existing uses in the
area. Within the 500' radius, staff identified properties with zoning districts MDR
and HC/LI.  The property is surrounded by single-family residences and vacant
properties throughout the 500 radius. To the northwest on Wade Ave there is two



commercial uses a repair shop and office store. The other uses surrounding the area are
less in intensity on the ground and not compatible with the allowed uses under the
requested HC/LI district. Due to the existing nonconforming business already
established in the HC/LI zoning this would be an expansion of the property zoning which
is surrounded by MDR zoning.

Criterion d., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Appropriate if spot zoning
Where the proposed zoning would establish or reinforce a condition of spot zoning as
defined in Chapter 6, the isolated district would nevertheless be transitional in character
between the adjoining districts, or the differences with those districts would be minor or
sufficiently limited.  The extent of these mitigating characteristics or conditions
demonstrates an appropriate site specific balancing of interests between the isolated
district and adjoining lands.
As per LDC Chapter 6, Spot Zoning is: Zoning applied to an area of land, regardless of its
size, that is different from the zoning of all contiguous land.  Such isolated or “spot” zoning is
usually higher in its density or intensity of use than the adjoining zoning and may, therefore,
extend privileges not generally extended to property similarly located in the area.  Spot zoning is
not by itself prohibited, but due to its potentially adverse impacts on adjoining zoning it carries a
higher burden of demonstration that, if authorized, it will contribute to or result in logical and
orderly development.

FINDINGS
The request to rezone to HC/LI would not be considered spot zoning due to the current
parcel is split zoned and already zoned HC/LI along Gulf Beach Hwy with an existing
business located on the northern half.  This would just be an expansion of the
business. The surrounding parcels along Gulf Beach Hwy also have split zoning  with
HC/LI  on both sides of Gulf Beach Highway and currently undeveloped.

Criterion e., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Appropriate with changed or changing conditions
If the land uses or development conditions within the area surrounding the property of
rezoning have changed, the changes are to such a degree and character that it is in the
public interest to allow new uses, density, or intensity in the area through rezoning; and
the permitted uses of the proposed district are appropriate and not premature for the
area or likely to create or contribute to sprawl.

FINDINGS
The land uses or development conditions within the area surrounding the property of
rezoning have not changed in uses or intensities. The subject parcel is already an
existing business and runs along Gulf Beach Hwy an arterial road that has existing HC/LI
zoning fronting all other properties along Gulf Beach Hwy to the east and west for over a
mile. This area already established road frontage of HC/LI Zoning has a mix of
non-residential uses, single family and vacant properties running in both directions for of
Gulf Beach Hwy. All the existing uses would be considered grandfather in. Any new uses
or expansion of uses would constitute as strip commercial development or urban sprawl
development do to the surrounding properties being split zoned MDR with all other
surrounding uses being MDR as well.



Attachments
Working Case File



Z-2018-14 



SORRENT O RD

BOCA

DEL
CIR

WAYCROSS
AVE

S AN MIGU EL

CALZ ADA

BR

OO KSTONE

W AY

CAM
S HIR E

CIR

MARY

FLEMING DR

ROBERTSON RD

SAN
JUAN

GRANDE

SO NO

RA

CA LZA DA

F UEL
F ARM RD

B RADF

IEL
D

DR

CORAL ST

W
ADE

AVE

DOG TRACK RD

G ULF

BEA CH HW Y

D AI SY LN

STONEWALL

AVE

AILEEN
DR

GERALD RD

GERALD
RD

WELLER AVE

RES ERVAT ION

AV E

SU NNY SID E ST

MARTEL
AVE

NORTH
LOOP RD

GANDY LN

LANDING

LN

MARS
DR

JUPITER DR

NEPTUNE DR

SI

DNEY RD

BERYL
AVE

GANDY
LN

TIFTON
AVE

NEWMAN
AVE

KINGSPORT

AVE

FENCELINE RD
KEPLER

AVE

OW
EN

BE
LL LN

NORT H
LOOP RD

BA

RRIOSCIR

G RANA

DA

CAM IN O
KI

NA

RD

AV

E

BLANCHE LN

VONNA
JO DR

PAZ PL

LARAMI E
DR

VONNA

JOCIR REDOUBT AVE

GULF BREEZE AVE

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Ft

Z-2018-14
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

BAYOU GRANDE



MDR

HC/LI

HC/LI

MDR

MDR

HC/LI

HC/LI

MDR

MDR
MDR

HDMU

MDR

WELLER
AVE

KINGSPORT AVE

WADE AVE

MERCADO AVE

WELLER AVE

NEPTU NE
DR

AILEEN DR

GULF BEACH HWY

GERALD RD

GRAINGER AVE

GERALD RDKEPLER AVE

MAR S
DRBERYL

AVE

WOLVERINE ST

SHERMAN AVE

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

Z-2018-14
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



PLANETARIUM

AVE

GERALD RD
GULF BEACH HWY

AILEEN DR

WADE AVE

WELLER AVE

MERCADO AVE

WELLER AVE

GRAINGER AVE

GERALD RD

MARTEL AVE

WOLVERINE

ST
KINGSPORT AVE

JUPITER DR

MARS DR
NEPTUNE DR

BERYL
AVE

SHERMAN AVE

KEPLER AVE

C

MU-U

P

MU-S

parcel_cama_Buffer38
PUD Bridlewood
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 350 700 1,050

Ft

Z-2018-14
FLU MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
John C Fisher



GULF BEACH HWY

WADE AVE

GERALD RD

AILEEN DRMERCADO AVE

WELLER AVE

WELLER AVE

GRAINGER

AVE

GERALD RD

MARS DR KINGSPORT AVE

WOLVERINE ST
BERYL

AVE

SHERMAN AVE

parcel_cama_Buffer38
PUD Bridlewood
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 275 550 825

Ft

Z-2018-14
ELU MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
John C Fisher

VACANT COM	

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF
SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

MH'S

V

V

V

V
V

SF

V

V

V

V

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF
SF

SF
V

V

SF

SF
SF

V

SFSF

SF

V

SFREPAIR 
SERVICE

V

V

V

STORE
OFFICE

V

VV

SF



GULF BEACH HWY

WELLER AVE

SHERMAN AVE

GERALD RD

AILEEN DR

M ARS DR WELLER
AVE

WADE AVE

GERALD RD

GRAINGER
AVE

BERYL AVE

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
WETLANDS_20060 200 400 600

Ft

Z-2018-14
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



APZ 2

APZ 2

APZ 2
APZ 2

APZ 2

APZ 2

WELLER
AVE

KINGSPORT AVE

WADE AVE

MERCADO AVE

WELLER AVE

NEPTU NE
DR

AILEEN DR

GULF BEACH HWY

GERALD RD

GRAINGER AVE

GER ALD RD

KEPLER AVE

MAR S
DRBERYL

AVE

WOLVERINE ST

SHERMAN AVE

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

ACCIDENT POTENTIAL
 ZONE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



PUBLIC HEARING SIGN



LOOKING EAST ALONG GULF BEACH HWY



SUBJECT PROPERTY



SUBJECT PROPERTY



LOOKING WEST ALONG GULF BEACH HWY



LOOKING NORTH FROM THE SUBJECT PROPERTY



AERIAL VIEW FROM GOOGLE EARTH IMAGERY DATE 01/14/2018

























3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Andrew Holmer, Division Manager 
Development Services Department 

 
FROM: Terri V. Malone, AICP, Transportation Planner 
  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 

THRU: David Forte, Division Manager 
Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 

 
DATE: October 23, 2018 
 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – Z-2018-14 
 

TTO Staff has reviewed the Rezoning Case (Z)-2018-14, 8925 Gulf Beach 
Highway, agenda item for the Planning Board meeting scheduled on November 8, 
2018. Please see the below comments. 

Gulf Beach Highway is a two-lane road with paved shoulders.  The 
approximate pavement width is 33 feet with two 12-foot travel lanes.  Right of Way 
is 66 feet.  There are two programmed signal projects (Patton Drive & Sunset 
Avenue) on Gulf Beach Highway showing in the County’s Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP).  There are also two signal projects programmed in the Florida 
Department of Transportation’s five-year work program.  

Gulf Beach Highway is classified as a principal arterial with an established 
vehicular capacity of 17,700 (LOS D) and a year 2017 daily volume of 18,500 
vehicles.   

TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the 
comments above hold no bearing on any future TTO comments during the 
Development Review process. 

  
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Jones, P.E., Public Works Department Director 
 Colby Brown, P.E., Public Works Department Deputy Director 
 Juan Lemos, CFM, Development Services Department 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   7. B.           
Meeting Date: 11/08/2018  
CASE : Z-2018-15
APPLICANT: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, Agent for Gulf Beach Self Storage, Inc.

Owner 

ADDRESS: 8939 Gulf Beach Hwy 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 33-2S-31-1000-002-075
FUTURE LAND USE: MU-U, Mixed-Use Urban  
DISTRICT: 2  
OVERLAY DISTRICT: AIPD 1; APZ 2 

BCC MEETING DATE: 12/06/2018 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: HC/LI, Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district (25 du/acre) and MDR,
Medium Density Residential district (10 du/acre)

TO: HC/LI-NA, Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district, prohibiting the subsequent
establishment of any microbreweries, microdistilleries, microwineries, bars, nightclubs,
or adult entertainment uses (25 du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla.
1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

APPROVAL CONDITIONS

Criterion a., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with Comprehensive Plan
The proposed zoning is consistent with the future land use (FLU) category as prescribed
in LDC Chapter 3, and with all other applicable goals, objectives, and policies of the
Comprehensive Plan.  If the rezoning is required to properly enact a proposed FLU map
amendment transmitted for state agency review, the proposed zoning is consistent with
the proposed FLU and conditional to its adoption.

CPP FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories The Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) Future Land



Use (FLU) category is intended for an intense mix of residential and nonresidential uses
while promoting compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban
land uses within the category as a whole. Range of allowable uses include: Residential,
Retail and Services, Professional Office, Light Industrial, Recreational Facilities, Public
and Civic. The maximum residential density is 25 dwelling units per acre.
CPP FLU 1.5.1 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas. To promote the
efficient use of existing public roads, utilities and service infrastructure, the County will
encourage redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize
development densities and intensities located in the Mixed Use-Suburban, Mixed
Use-Urban, Commercial and Industrial Future Land Use districts categories (with the
exception of residential development).

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment to HC/LI-NA is consistent with the intent and purpose of
Future Land Use category Mixed-Use Urban as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1. The
Comprehensive Plan allows for professional offices, light industrial, recreational
facilities, public and civic. The parcel will utilize the existing public road, utilities, and
infrastructure.

Criterion b., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with The Land Development Code
The proposed zoning is consistent with the purpose and intent and with any other zoning
establishment provisions prescribed by the proposed district in Chapter 3.

Sec. 3-2.7 Medium Density Residential district (MDR).
(a) Purpose. The Medium Density Residential (MDR) district establishes appropriate
areas and land use regulations for residential uses at medium densities within suburban
or urban areas. The primary intent of the district is to provide for residential
neighborhood development in an efficient urban pattern of well-connected streets and at
greater dwelling unit density than the Low Density Residential district. Residential uses
within the MDR district are limited to single-family and two-family dwellings. The district
allows non-residential uses that are compatible with suburban and urban residential
neighborhoods.

Sec. 3-2.11 Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district (HC/LI).
(a) Purpose. The Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial (HC/LI) district establishes
appropriate areas and land use regulations for a complementary mix of industrial uses
with a broad range of commercial activities. The primary intent of the district is to allow
light manufacturing, large-scale wholesale and retail uses, major services, and other
more intense uses than allowed in the Commercial district. The variety and intensity of
non-residential uses within the HC/LI district is limited by the applicable FLU and their
compatibility with surrounding uses. All commercial and industrial operations are limited
to the confines of buildings and not allowed to produce undesirable effects on other
property. To retain adequate area for commercial and industrial activities, other uses
within the district are limited.
(b) Permitted uses. Permitted uses within the HC/LI district are limited to the following:
(1) Residential. Any residential uses outside of the Industrial (I) future land use category
but if within the Commercial (C) future land use category (and not the principal



but if within the Commercial (C) future land use category (and not the principal
single-family dwelling on an existing lot of record), only as part of a predominantly
commercial development; and excluding new or expanded manufactured (mobile) home
parks and subdivisions. See also conditional uses in this district.
(2) Retail sales. Retail sales, including Low-THC marijuana dispensing facilities, sales of
alcoholic beverages, sales of automotive fuels, and sales of new and used automobiles,
motorcycles, boats, and manufactured (mobile) homes.
(3) Retail services.
a. Car washes, automatic or manual, full service or self-serve.
b. Child care facilities.
c. Hotels, motels and all other public lodging, including boarding and rooming houses.
d. Personal services, including those of beauty shops, health clubs, pet groomers, dry
cleaners and tattoo parlors.
e. Professional services, including those of realtors, bankers, accountants, engineers,
architects, dentists, physicians, and attorneys.
f. Rental of automobiles, trucks, utility trailers and recreational vehicles.
g. Repair services, including appliance repair, furniture refinishing and upholstery, watch
and jewelry repair, small engine and motor services, and major motor vehicle and boat
service and repair, but excluding outdoor work or storage.
h. Restaurants and brewpubs, including on-premises consumption of alcoholic
beverages, drive-in and drive-through service, and brewpubs with the distribution of
on-premises produced alcoholic beverages for off-site sales. The parcel boundary of any
restaurant or brewpub with drive-in or drive-through service shall be at least 200 feet
from any LDR or MDR zoning district unless separated by a 50-foot or wider street
right-of-way.
i. Taxi and limousine services 
See also conditional uses in this district.
(4) Public and civic.
a. Broadcast stations with satellite dishes and antennas, including towers.
b. Cemeteries, including family cemeteries.
c. Community service facilities, including auditoriums, libraries, museums, and
neighborhood centers.
d. Educational facilities, including preschools, K-12, colleges, and vocational schools.
e. Emergency service facilities, including law enforcement, fire fighting, and medical
assistance .
f. Funeral establishments.
g. Homeless shelters.
h. Hospitals.
i. Offices for government agencies or public utilities.
j. Places of worship.
k. Public utility structures, including telecommunications towers, but excluding industrial
uses not otherwise permitted.
See also conditional uses in this district.
(5) Recreation and entertainment.
a. Commercial entertainment facilities, indoor or outdoor, including movie theatres,
amusement parks, and stadiums, but excluding motorsports facilities. Carnival-type
amusements shall be at least 500 feet from any residential district. Bars, nightclubs, and
adult entertainment are prohibited in areas with the zoning designation HC/LI-NA or



areas zoned ID-CP or ID-1 prior to adoption of HC/LI zoning.
b. Commercial recreation facilities, passive or active, including those for walking, hiking,
bicycling, camping, recreational vehicles, swimming, skateboarding, bowling, court
games, field sports, and golf, but excluding off-highway vehicle uses and outdoor
shooting ranges. Campgrounds and recreational vehicle parks require a minimum lot
area of five acres.
c. Marinas, private and commercial.
d. Parks, with or without permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting.
See also conditional uses in this district.
(6) Industrial and related. The following industrial and related uses, except within MU-S.
a. Light industrial uses, including research and development, printing and binding,
distribution and wholesale warehousing, and manufacturing, all completely within the
confines of buildings and without adverse off-site impacts.
b. Marinas, industrial.
c. Microbreweries, microdistilleries, and microwineries, except in areas with the zoning
designation HC/LI-NA.
See also conditional uses in this district.
(7) Agricultural and related.
a. Food produced primarily for personal consumption by the producer, but no farm
animals.
b. Nurseries and garden centers, including adjoining outdoor storage or display of plants.
c. Veterinary clinics, excluding outside kennels.
See also conditional uses in this district.
(8) Other uses. Within MU-S, outside storage is permitted only when adequately
screened per LDC regulations.
a. Billboards structures, excluding areas zoned ID-CP, GBD, or GID prior to adoption of
HC/LI zoning.
b. Building or construction trades shops and warehouses, including on-site outside
storage.
c. Bus leasing and rental facilities, not allowed within MU-S.
d. Deposit boxes for donation of used items when placed as an accessory structure on
the site of a charitable organization.
e. Outdoor adjacent display of plants by garden shops and nurseries.
f. Outdoor sales.
g. Outdoor storage of trailered boats and operable recreational vehicles, excluding
repair, overhaul or salvage activities.
h. Parking garages and lots, commercial, not allowed within MU-S.
i. Sales and outdoor display of prefabricated storage sheds.
j. Self-storage facilities, including vehicle rental as an accessory use.
(2) HC/LI-NA designation. Any applicant for rezoning to the HC/LI zoning district may
request a HC/LI-NA designation prohibiting the subsequent establishment of any
microbreweries, microdistilleries, microwineries, bars, nightclubs, or adult entertainment
uses on the rezoned property. The request shall be in the form of a notarized affidavit
that acknowledges this use restriction and affirms that it is a voluntary request. Once
approved according to the rezoning process of Chapter 2, the HC/LI-NA zoning
designation and its prohibitions shall apply to the property, regardless of ownership,
unless the parcel is rezoned.



(e) Location criteria. All new non-residential uses proposed within the HC/LI district that
are not part of a planned unit development or not identified as exempt by district
regulations shall be on parcels that satisfy at least one of the following location criteria.
(1) Parcel previously zoned GBD within the MU-S FLU along Hwy 29 or SR 95A. Parcels
previously zoned GBD and within the MU-S future land use category which are located
along and directly fronting U.S. Highway 29 or State Road 95A
(2) Proximity to intersection. Along an arterial street and within one-quarter mile of its
intersection with an arterial street.
(3) Site design. Along an arterial street, no more than one-half mile from its intersection
with an arterial street, and all of the following site design conditions:
a. Not abutting a RR, LDR or MDR zoning district
b. Any intrusion into a recorded residential subdivision is limited to a corner lot
c. A system of service roads or shared access is provided to the maximum extent
feasible given the lot area, lot shape, ownership patterns, and site and street
characteristics.
d. Adverse impacts to any adjoining residential uses are minimized by placing the more
intensive elements of the use, such as solid waste dumpsters and truck
loading/unloading areas, furthest from the residential uses.
e. Location in an area where already established non-residential uses are otherwise
consistent with the HC/LI, and where the new use would constitute infill development of
similar intensity as the conforming development on surrounding parcels. Additionally, the
location would promote compact development and not contribute to or promote strip
commercial development.
(4) Documented compatibility. A compatibility analysis prepared by the applicant
provides competent substantial evidence of unique circumstances regarding the parcel
or use that were not anticipated by the alternative criteria, and the proposed use will be
able to achieve long-term compatibility with existing and potential uses. Additionally, the
following conditions exist:
a. The parcel has not been rezoned by the landowner from the mixed-use, commercial,
or industrial zoning assigned by the county.
b. If the parcel is within a county redevelopment district, the use will be consistent with
the district’s adopted redevelopment plan, as reviewed and recommended by the
Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA).

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is not consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land
Development Code due to locational criteria.  The undeveloped parcel is on an arterial
roadway, however it is just outside of the required one-half mile from its intersection with
an arterial street and is is also abutting MDR zoning.district.  The parcel is in an areas
that has established commercial uses and this could constitue infill development of
similiar intensity as some of the surrounding parcels. Currently, the property falls in the
APZ-2 area which prohibits any concentration of people living in the area.  A self storage
would be appropriate use for this area.

Criterion c., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Compatible with surrounding uses



Compatible with surrounding uses
All the permitted uses of the proposed zoning, not just those anticipated by the rezoning
applicant, are compatible, as defined in Chapter 6, with the surrounding uses.  The uses
of any surrounding undeveloped land shall be considered the permitted uses of the
applicable district. Compatibility is not considered with potential conditional uses or with
any nonconforming or unapproved uses.  Also, in establishing the compatibility of a
residential use, there is no additional burden to demonstrate the compatibility of specific
residents or activities protected by fair housing law.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area.
Within the 500' radius impact area, staff observed properties with zoning districts HC/LI
and MDR. There are single-family parcels, vacant parcels, a repair shop, car lot and an
office in the area surrounding the subject properties.

Criterion d., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Appropriate if spot zoning
Where the proposed zoning would establish or reinforce a condition of spot zoning as
defined in Chapter 6, the isolated district would nevertheless be transitional in character
between the adjoining districts, or the differences with those districts would be minor or
sufficiently limited.  The extent of these mitigating characteristics or conditions
demonstrates an appropriate site specific balancing of interests between the isolated
district and adjoining lands.
As per LDC Chapter 6, Spot Zoning is: Zoning applied to an area of land, regardless of its
size, that is different from the zoning of all contiguous land. Such isolated or “spot” zoning is
usually higher in its density or intensity of use than the adjoining zoning and may, therefore,
extend privileges not generally extended to property similarly located in the area.  Spot zoning is
not by itself prohibited, but due to its potentially adverse impacts on adjoining zoning it carries a
higher burden of demonstration that, if authorized, it will contribute to or result in logical and
orderly development.

FINDINGS
The parcel is currently vacant and is a split zoned parcel of HC/LI and MDR. Along both
sides Gulf Beach Highway the parcels are either zoned HC/LI or split zoned HC/LI and
MDR. this would not be considered spot zoning.

Criterion e., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Appropriate with changed or changing conditions
If the land uses or development conditions within the area surrounding the property of
rezoning have changed, the changes are to such a degree and character that it is in the
public interest to allow new uses, density, or intensity in the area through rezoning; and
the permitted uses of the proposed district are appropriate and not premature for the
area or likely to create or contribute to sprawl.

FINDINGS
The land uses or development conditions within the area surrounding the property of
rezoning have not changed. The area along Gulf Beach Highway has parcels with split
zoning and a mix of commercial and residential uses.



Attachments
Working Case File



Z-2018-15 



BAYOU
GRANDE

S ORRENTO RD

BOCA

DEL CIR

WAYCROSS
AVE

SA N MIGUEL

CALZAD A

BR

OOKS TONE

WA Y

CAM
S HIR E

CIR

MARY

FL
EMING DR

CORAL

CREEK
DR

ROBERTSON RD

SAN
JUAN

GRANDE

SONO

RA

CALZA D A

F UEL
F ARM RD

BR ADF

IEL
D

DR

W
ADE

AVE

DOG TRACK RD

CORAL ST

DA IS Y LN

STONEWALL

AVE

AILE EN
DR

GULF

BEAC H HWY

GERALD RD

GERALD
RD

WELLER AVE

RESE RVAT IO N

AVE

SUN NYS IDE ST

MARTEL
AVEGANDY LN

LANDING

LN

MARS
DR

JUPITER DR

NEPTUNE DR

SIDNEY RD

BERYL
AVE

GANDY
LN

NEWMAN
AVE

K INGS PORT

AVE

FENCELINE RD

BUCKL E BURY

D R

KEPLER
AVE

KI
NA

RD

AV

E

OW
EN

BE
LL L NBA

RRIOSCIR

GRANA

DA

CA MI N O

BLANCHE LN

VONNA
JO DR

PAZ
PL

LARAMI E
DR

VO
NNA

JO
CIR

WEATH
ER

STONE

CIR

REDOUBT AVE

GULF BREEZE AVE

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Ft

Z-2018-14
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



MDR

HC/LI

HDMU

MDR

MDR

HC/LI

HC/LI HC/LI

MDR

MDRMDR

WELLER
AVE

GERALD RD

AILEEN DR

WADE AVE

MERCADO AVE

WELLER AVE

GUL F

BEAC H HWY

GRAINGER AVE

GERALD RD

WOLVERINE

ST
MARS DRBERYL

AVE

SHERMAN AVE

KEPLER AVE

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

Z-2018-14
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



C

MU-S

MU-S

MU-U

C

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

C
WELLER AVE

GERALD RD

AILEEN DR

WADE
AVE

MERCADO AVE

WELLER AVE

GULF BEACH HWY

GRAINGER AVE

GER ALD RD

WOLVERINE

ST
MARS DRBERYL

AVE

SHERMAN AVE

KEPLER AVE

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

Z-2018-14
FUTURE LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



WELLER AVE

GERALD RD

AILEEN DR

WADE AVE

MERCADO AVE

WELLER AVE

GULF BEACH HWY

GRAINGER AVE

GERALD RD

WOLVERINE

ST
MARS DRBERYL

AVE

SHERMAN AVE

KEPLER AVE

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

Z-2018-15
EXISTING LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

CAR LOTSF

SF

SF

SF

SF
SF

SF
SF

SF

SF SF
SF

SF

SF

SF

SF
SF

SF

V

SF

SF

STOREOFFICE

V

V

V
V

V
VV

V

V

SF

MH'S

SF
SF

SF SF

V

V

V
V

VV

REPAIRSERVICE
V

V

V
V V

V

V

SF
SF



GERALD RD

MERCADO AVE

GULF BEACH HWY

SHERMAN AVE

GERALD RD
BERYL AVE

WADE AVE WELLER AVE

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
WETLANDS_20060 200 400 600

Ft

Z-2018-14
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



APZ 2

APZ 2

APZ 2 APZ 2

APZ 2

WELLER AVE

GERALD RD

AILEEN DR

WADE AVE

MERCADO AVE

WELLER AVE

GULF BEACH HWY

GRAINGER AVE

GER ALD RD

WOLVERINE

ST
MARS DRBERYL

AVE

SHERMAN AVE

KEPLER AVE

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

ACCIDENT POTENTIAL
ZONE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



Public Hearing Sign



Subject Parcel



Looking east along Gulf 
Beach Highway



Looking West along 
Gulf Beach Highway



Looking across Gulf 
Beach Highway from 

subject parcel



Jp^ ^k

Wiley C."Buddy" Page, MPA, APA
Professional Growth Management Services, LLC

5337 Hamilton Lane Pace, Florida 32571
Cell 850.232.9853

budpaaeOatt. net
August 10, 2018

VIA HAND DELIVERY

Mr. Horace Jones, Director
Department of Growth Management
3363 West Park Avenue

Pensacola, Florida 32505

Dear Mr. Jones:

RE: Rezoning request: MDRto HC/LI NA
Parcel: Portion of 33-2S-31-1000-002-075

Owner: Gulf Beach Self Storage, Inc.
Address: 8939 Gulf Beach Highway

The attached application requests Planning Board consideration to rezone the
southerly portion of the referenced parcel of property from Medium Density
Residential to Heavy Commercial / Light Industrial. As shown herein, the property has
split zoning where the front portion is presently zoned HC/LI and the southerly portion
is zoned MDR.

With regard to location requirements, there are two uses that produce more than 600
trips per day. The first is Campshire Meadows, a 100+ residential subdivision shown on
the attached maps. All traffic travels south on Weller Avenue to Gulf Beach Highway less
than 600 feet from the subject site. The second is a new Dollar General store located at
the intersection of Gulf Beach Highway and Kingsport Avenue, east of the subject site.
This store measures between 1,328 and 1,332 feet east of the subject site, slightly
exceeding the 1,320 feet requirement. Considering both of these trip generating sources,
we intend to ask that the Planning Board consider that the subject site meets the
essential requirements of LDC 3-2.10(e)(2) Proximity to Traffic Generator.

The application contains the required filing fee together with additional
information regarding proof of ownership, corporate papers, a certified boundary
survey and location maps.

Please contact me if you have any questions or require anything further. Thank
you.

y" Page

LAND USE • ZONING • SITE SELECTION • LITIGATION SUPPORT































(J)
 

.....
 

-i
 

m
 

-0
 

:;;o
 

0
 

X
 

.....
 

3:
 

�
 

d
 

-i
 

�
 

71
 

71
 

.....
 

n
 

G)
 

m
 

z
 

m
 

�
 

0
 

:;;o
 

(J)
 

'< 
cP°

t 

-,"
l 

\1
-













3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Andrew Holmer, Division Manager 
Development Services Department 

 
FROM: Terri V. Malone, AICP, Transportation Planner 
  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 

THRU: David Forte, Division Manager 
Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 

 
DATE: October 24, 2018 
 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – Z-2018-15 
 

TTO Staff has reviewed the Rezoning Case (Z)-2018-15, 8939 Gulf Beach 
Highway, agenda item for the Planning Board meeting scheduled on November 8, 
2018. Please see the below comments. 

Gulf Beach Highway is a two-lane road with paved shoulders.  The 
approximate pavement width is 33 feet with two 12-foot travel lanes.  Right of Way 
is 66 feet.  There are two programmed signal projects (Patton Drive & Sunset 
Avenue) on Gulf Beach Highway showing in the County’s Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP).  There are also two signal projects programmed in the Florida 
Department of Transportation’s five-year work program.  

Gulf Beach Highway is classified as a principal arterial with an established 
vehicular capacity of 17,700 (LOS D) and a year 2017 daily volume of 18,500 
vehicles.   

TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the 
comments above hold no bearing on any future TTO comments during the 
Development Review process. 

  
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Jones, P.E., Public Works Department Director 
 Colby Brown, P.E., Public Works Department Deputy Director 
 Allyson Cain, Development Services Department 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   7. C.           
Meeting Date: 11/08/2018  
CASE : Z-2018-16
APPLICANT: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, Agent for James Campbell, Owner 

ADDRESS: 1250 Fairchild Street 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 30-1S-30-1101-000-000
FUTURE LAND USE: MU-U, Mixed Use Urban  
DISTRICT: 4  
OVERLAY DISTRICT: N/A 

BCC MEETING DATE: 12/06/2018 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: HC/LI, Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district (25 du/acre)

TO: HDR, High Density Residential district (18 du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla.
1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

APPROVAL CONDITIONS

Criterion a., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with Comprehensive Plan
The proposed zoning is consistent with the future land use (FLU) category as prescribed
in LDC Chapter 3, and with all other applicable goals, objectives, and policies of the
Comprehensive Plan.  If the rezoning is required to properly enact a proposed FLU map
amendment transmitted for state agency review, the proposed zoning is consistent with
the proposed FLU and conditional to its adoption.

CPP 1.3.1 Future Land Use Category. The Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) Future Land Use
(FLU) category is intended for an intense mix of residential and nonresidential uses while
promoting compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban land
uses within the category as a whole. Range of allowable uses include: Residential, Retail
and Services, Professional Office, Light Industrial, Recreational Facilities, Public and



Civic. The maximum residential density is 25 dwelling units per acre.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment to HDR is consistent with the intent and purpose of Future
Land Use category MU-U as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1. the future land use allows
residential, retail and services that would be compatible with adjacent parcels.

Criterion b., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with The Land Development Code
The proposed zoning is consistent with the purpose and intent and with any other zoning
establishment provisions prescribed by the proposed district in Chapter 3.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land
Development Code. The parcel is currently HC/LI and the request is to downzone to
HDR, which is a less intense zoning.The requested zoning will be compatible with the
adjacent parcels to the east and south, currently zoned HDR.

Criterion c., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Compatible with surrounding uses
All the permitted uses of the proposed zoning, not just those anticipated by the rezoning
applicant, are compatible, as defined in Chapter 6, with the surrounding uses.  The uses
of any surrounding undeveloped land shall be considered the permitted uses of the
applicable district. Compatibility is not considered with potential conditional uses or with
any nonconforming or unapproved uses.  Also, in establishing the compatibility of a
residential use, there is no additional burden to demonstrate the compatibility of specific
residents or activities protected by fair housing law.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area.
Within the 500' radius impact area, staff observed properties with zoning districts HC/LI,
HDR, HDMU and Com. Within the area of the subject parcel, there are single family
residential lots, a mobile home and vacant land.

Criterion d., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Appropriate if spot zoning
Where the proposed zoning would establish or reinforce a condition of spot zoning as
defined in Chapter 6, the isolated district would nevertheless be transitional in character
between the adjoining districts, or the differences with those districts would be minor or
sufficiently limited.  The extent of these mitigating characteristics or conditions
demonstrates an appropriate site specific balancing of interests between the isolated
district and adjoining lands.
As per LDC Chapter 6, Spot Zoning is: Zoning applied to an area of land, regardless of its
size, that is different from the zoning of all contiguous land.  Such isolated or “spot” zoning is
usually higher in its density or intensity of use than the adjoining zoning and may, therefore,
extend privileges not generally extended to property similarly located in the area.  Spot zoning is
not by itself prohibited, but due to its potentially adverse impacts on adjoining zoning it carries a
higher burden of demonstration that, if authorized, it will contribute to or result in logical and



higher burden of demonstration that, if authorized, it will contribute to or result in logical and
orderly development.

FINDINGS
The HDR district would not be spot zoning due to the other similar zoning districts
adjacent to and in the vicinity.

Criterion e., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Appropriate with changed or changing conditions
If the land uses or development conditions within the area surrounding the property of
rezoning have changed, the changes are to such a degree and character that it is in the
public interest to allow new uses, density, or intensity in the area through rezoning; and
the permitted uses of the proposed district are appropriate and not premature for the
area or likely to create or contribute to sprawl.

FINDINGS
The land uses or development conditions within the area surrounding the property of
rezoning have not changed and the uses allowed in HDR zoning category would be
appropriate and compatible with the surrounding properties.

Attachments
Working Case File



Z-2018-16 



E OLIVE RD

N
DA

VI
S

HW
Y

N
DA

VI
S

HW
Y

PL
AN

TA

TIONRD

INTERSTATE 1 0

INT ERSTATE110 RAMPD

INT ERST ATE
10 RAMP B INTERST ATE 1 0

I NT E R STATE

1 0 R A MP

IN
TE

RS
T A

T E
11

0
R A

M
P

H

MA
RT

IN
IQ

UE
RD

CA
MI

N I
TT

I
LN

PAR K ER CIR

W
HI

TM
IR

E 
DR

MON A
LN

GR
EG

G 
RD

KI
PL

IN
G 

ST

FA IRCHILD ST

SC
HW

AB
 D

R

JO
Y 

ST

INTERSTATE
1 0 RAMP F2

BLOOD WORT H L N

N
DA

VI
S

HW
Y

TR
EE

TO
P

L N

LANSING DR

JOHNCARROL L DR

E
O

L IVE

R D

WH

IRLYBIRD

AVE
NORT HCROSS

LN

MA
TH

IS
CT

N
DA

V I
S

H W
Y

ELAINE
CIR

I N TER STA TE10 R AMP

AM
ES

 R
D

TEATE
AVE

BLACKWELL LN

SE
W

EL
L 

RD

L O
DE

S T
A R

A V
E

MA
RI

E
AV

E

RA INES ST

BOVARY
CT

P A RK ER DR

AT
W

OO
D

DR ATWOOD DR DESERT
OAK

D R

SCHUBERT DR

PIN
OAK CT

LA
NI

ER
 D

R

BL
AZ

E
AV

E

ERWIN DR

FRANK ST

DESERT ST

JO
Y

ST

AL
LY

N 
W

AY

CH
AP

EL
 S

T
MA

RL
OW

 S
T

FRAZIER ST

DEWRE LL
SQ

DORA ST

CHARTER

OAKS
DR

CREIGHTON
RD

LA
W

TO
N 

ST

ME
LB

A 
ST

BE
TA LN

KI
PL

IN
G 

ST

MA
NG

UM
 D

R

CRE IGHT ON RD MA
RI

E
AV

E

CA
LU

M
ET

 C
T

LA
NI

ER
 D

R

SAN DOLLAR
CIR

PLANT ATI O N RD

UNIVERSITYHEIGHTS CIR

OAK
L EAF

CT

ATWOOD DR

BA
HA

MA
 R

D
DA

TA
 S

T

WILSONREAVES LN

MA
RI

E
AV

E

UN IVERSITYP L AZA DR PL
AN

TA
TI

ON
RD

KIPL ING ST

LA
NI

ER
 D

R

RA
IN ES

CT

SA
ND

E R
S

AV
E

PANDORA PL

CH
AP

EL
ST

ATW OOD DR
DESERT

ST

BI
NK

LE
Y

ST

LA
W

TO
N 

ST

CA
RL

DE
AN

 S
T

ARDEN ST

KI
PL

IN
G 

ST

BLUE
STAR DR

PARKE RCIR

VERNON ST

LI
LA

C 
LN

E BURGESS RD

BROOKLYN ST

SA
BR

A 
DR

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Ft

Z-2018-16
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



Com
Com

HDMU HDMU

HC/LI HDR
HDR

HDR
HDR

HC/LI

HDR

CH
AP

EL
 S

T

BLOODWORTH LN

F AIRCHIL D ST

INTERSTATE 1 0

INTE RSTATE
10 RAMP

JO
Y 

ST

FI
TC

H 
AV

E

MA
RI

E 
AV

E

LA
W

TO
N 

ST
LA

W
TO

N 
ST

PANDORA PL

CH
AP

EL
ST

INTERSTATE 1 0

IN TE RST ATE1 0 R AMP

ARDEN ST

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

Z-2018-16
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



C

C

C

MU-U MU-U
MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

CH
AP

EL
 S

T

BLOODWORTH LN

F AIRCHIL D ST

INTERSTATE 1 0

INTE RSTATE
10 RAMP

JO
Y 

ST

FI
TC

H 
AV

E

MA
RI

E 
AV

E

LA
W

TO
N 

ST
LA

W
TO

N 
ST

PANDORA PL

CH
AP

EL
ST

INTERSTATE 1 0

IN TE RST ATE1 0 R AMP

ARDEN ST

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

Z-2018-16
FUTURE LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



CH
AP

EL
 S

T

BLOODWORTH LN

FAIRCHILD ST

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE
10 RAMP

JO
Y 

ST

FI
TC

H 
AV

E

MA
RI

E 
AV

E

LA
W

TO
N 

ST
LA

W
TO

N 
ST

PANDORA PL

CH
AP

EL
ST

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE10 RAMP

ARDEN ST

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

Z-2018-16
EXISTING LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF SF

SF

SF
SF

SF
SF

SF

VAC

SF

SF

VAC
SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SFSF

VAC

VAC

VAC

VAC

VAC

VAC

VAC

SFSF

SF

SFSF SF



FAIRCHILD ST

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE10 RAMP

CH
AP

EL
 S

T

LA
W

TO
N 

ST

PANDORA PL

INTERSTATE 10

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 160 320 480

Ft

Z-2018-16
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



300

300

270

270

270

270

270

CH
AP

EL
 S

T

BLOODWORTH LN

F AIRCHIL D ST

INTERSTATE 1 0

INTE RSTATE
10 RAMP

JO
Y 

ST

FI
TC

H 
AV

E

MA
RI

E 
AV

E

LA
W

TO
N 

ST
LA

W
TO

N 
ST

PANDORA PL

CH
AP

EL
ST

INTERSTATE 1 0

IN TE RST ATE1 0 R AMP

ARDEN ST

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

Z-2018-16
AIRPORT HEIGHT ZONE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



Public Hearing Sign



Looking into subject 
parcel



Looking onto 
subject parcel. 
House behind 

trees



Another view into 
subject parcel



Another view onto subject 
parcel. 



Looking onto 
Fairchild from subject 

parcel



Looking east on 
Fairchild



Looking south from 
subject parcel on Chapel 

St



Wiley CBuddy" Page, MPA, APA
Professional Growth Management Services, LLC

5337 Hamilton Lane Pace, Florida 32571
Cell 850.232.9853

budacielOatt. net

August 10, 2018
VIA HAND DELIVERY

Mr. Horace Jones, Director
Department of Growth Management
3363 West Park Avenue

Pensacola, Florida 32505

Dear Mr. Jones:

RE: Rezoning request: HC/LI to HDR
Parcel: 30-1S-30-1101-000-000

Owner: James W. Campbell, Jr.
Address: 1250 Fairchild Street

The attached application requests Planning Board consideration to rezone a the
referenced parcel of property from HC/LI to HDR High Density Residential. As shown
herein, the property has HDR zoning to the east and south of the site and HC/LI
(Coke Bottling Plant) to the west. The site is served by local roads and it is this reason
that the site could never be actually developed as a commercial use.

The application contains the required filing fee together with additional
information regarding proof of ownership, a certified boundary survey and
location maps.

Please contact me if you have any questions or require anything further. Thank
you.

Wiley C'Bflddy" Page

LAND USE • ZONING • SUE SELECTION • LITIGATION SUPPORT



























3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Andrew Holmer, Division Manager 
Development Services Department 

 
FROM: Terri V. Malone, AICP, Transportation Planner 
  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 

THRU: David Forte, Division Manager 
Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 

 
DATE: October 24, 2018 
 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – Z-2018-16 
 

TTO Staff has reviewed the Rezoning Case (Z)-2018-16, 1250 Fairchild 
Street, agenda item for the Planning Board meeting scheduled on November 8, 
2018. Please see the below comments. 

 
Fairchild Street is two lane local road without shoulders, curb and gutter or 

sidewalks.  The road dead-ends in front of the subject property. The approximate 
pavement width in front of the property is 10 feet and 20 feet immediately east.  
Right of Way is approximately 36 feet directly in front of the property and 66 feet 
immediately east.   

 
Currently, there are no on-going or programmed projects on Fairchild 

Street showing in the County’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP).  Likewise, 
there are no ongoing or programmed projects on the adjacent segment of 
Creighton Road in either the County’s CIP or the Florida Department of 
Transportation’s five-year work program. 

 
Fairchild Street is classified as a local road and assumed to be functioning 

within its allowable capacity for traffic volumes. Per the TPO’s Congestion 
Management Process Plan, Creighton Road is classified as a minor arterial with 
an allowable vehicular capacity of 32,400 (LOS D) and a year 2017 daily volume of 
22,000 vehicles.   

 
TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the 

comments above hold no bearing on any future TTO comments during the 
Development Review process. 

  
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Jones, P.E., Public Works Department Director 
 Colby Brown, P.E., Public Works Department Deputy Director 
 Allyson Cain, Development Services Department 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   7. D.           
Meeting Date: 11/08/2018  
CASE : Z-2018-17
APPLICANT: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, agent for RNL Investment Group, LLC,

Owner 

ADDRESS: 8891 Burning Tree Rd 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 06-1S-30-1000-000-024 (sections of)
FUTURE LAND USE: MU-U, Mixed-Use Urban  
DISTRICT: 5  
OVERLAY DISTRICT: N/A 

BCC MEETING DATE: 12/06/2018 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING: 

Northern Portion: 
From: Rec, Recreation district (du density limited to vested development)
 
To: MDR, Medium Density Residential district (10 du/acre)

Southern Portion: 
From: Rec, Recreation district (du density limited to vested development)
 
To: Com, Commercial district (25 du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla.
1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

APPROVAL CONDITIONS

Criterion a., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with Comprehensive Plan
The proposed zoning is consistent with the future land use (FLU) category as prescribed
in LDC Chapter 3, and with all other applicable goals, objectives, and policies of the
Comprehensive Plan.  If the rezoning is required to properly enact a proposed FLU map
amendment transmitted for state agency review, the proposed zoning is consistent with



the proposed FLU and conditional to its adoption.

FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories. General descriptions, range of allowable uses,
and residential densities and non-residential intensities for all future land use categories
in Escambia County are outlined below.
FLU 1.5.1 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas. To promote the efficient
use of existing public roads, utilities, and service infrastructure, the County will
encourage the redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize development
densities and intensities located in the MU-S, MU-U, Commercial, and Industrial Future
Land Use categories (with the exception
of residential development).
FLU 2.1.2 Compact Development. To promote compact development, FLUM
amendments and residential re-zonings to allow for higher residential densities to be
allowed in the MU-U and MU-S future land use categories.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment to Medium Density Residential and Commercial is
consistent with the intent and purpose of Future Land Use (FLU) category Mixed-Use
Urban (MU-U) as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1. The FLU category is intended for an intense
mix of residential and non-residential uses while promoting compatible infill development.
The parcels identified will use established public roads, utilities and service
infrastructure, satisfying the requirements under FLU 1.5.1. The MU-U FLUM category is
also identified in the Comprehensive Plan under FLU 2.1.2 to accommodate residential
rezoning.     
 

Criterion b., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with The Land Development Code
The proposed zoning is consistent with the purpose and intent and with any other zoning
establishment provisions prescribed by the proposed district in Chapter 3.

Sec. 3-2.13 Recreation district (Rec).
(a) Purpose. The Recreation (Rec) district establishes appropriate areas and land use
regulations for outdoor recreational uses and open space. The primary intent of the
district is to preserve and maintain parcels of land necessary or used for a system of
public and private parks providing both active and passive recreational activities
and amenities. Indoor recreation facilities are allowed within the Recreational district if
customarily incidental to the principal outdoor uses. Non-recreational uses are severely
limited to ensure the preservation of district lands and provision of adequate areas for
public recreation. New or expanded residential development is generally prohibited.

Sec. 3-2.7    Medium Density Residential district (MDR).
(a) Purpose. The Medium Density Residential (MDR) district establishes appropriate
areas and land use regulations for residential uses at medium densities within suburban
or urban areas. The primary intent of the district is to provide for residential
neighborhood development in an efficient urban pattern of well-connected streets and at
greater dwelling unit density than the Low Density Residential district. Residential uses
within the MDR district are limited to single-family and two-family dwellings.  The district



within the MDR district are limited to single-family and two-family dwellings.  The district
allows non-residential uses that are compatible with suburban and urban residential
neighborhoods.
(b) Permitted uses. Permitted uses within the MDR district are limited to the following:
(1) Residential.
a.  Manufactured (mobile) homes only within manufactured home parks or subdivisions.
No new or expanded manufactured home parks, and new or expanded manufactured
home subdivisions only on land zoned V-4 prior to adoption of MDR zoning.
b.  Single-family dwellings (other than manufactured homes), detached and only one per
lot, excluding accessory dwellings. Accessory dwellings only on lots one acre or larger.
Attached single-family dwellings and zero lot line subdivisions only on land zoned R-3 or
V-4 prior to adoption of MDR zoning.
c.  Two-family dwellings only on land zoned R-3 or V-4 prior to adoption of MDR zoning,
and multi-family dwellings up to four units per dwelling (quadruplex) only on land zoned
V-4 prior to MDR zoning.
See also conditional uses in this district.
(2) Retail sales.  No retail sales.
(3) Retail services.  No retail services.  See conditional uses in this district.
(4) Public and civic.  Public utility structures, excluding telecommunications towers. See
also conditional uses in this district.
(5) Recreation and entertainment.
a.  Marinas, private.
b.  Parks without permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting. See also conditional
uses in this district.
(6) Industrial and related.  No industrial or related uses.
(7) Agricultural and related. Agricultural production limited to food primarily for
personal consumption by the producer, but no farm animals. See also conditional uses
in this district.
(8) Other uses. [reserved]
(c) Conditional uses. Through the conditional use process prescribed in Chapter 2, the
BOA may conditionally allow the following uses within the MDR district:
(1) Residential.
a.  Accessory dwellings on lots less than one acre.
b.  Group living, excluding residential facilities providing substance abuse
treatment, post-incarceration reentry, or similar services.
c.  Home occupations with non-resident employees.
d.  Townhouses not among the permitted uses of the district.
(2) Retail services.  Boarding and rooming houses.
(3) Public and civic.
a.  Clubs, civic and fraternal.
b.  Educational facilities, excluding preschools or kindergartens independent of other
elementary grades.
c.  Emergency service facilities, including law enforcement, fire fighting, and medical
assistance.
d.  Offices for government agencies or public utilities, small scale (gross floor area 6000
sq.ft. or less per lot).
e.  Places of worship.
f.   Public utility structures exceeding the district structure height limit,



excluding telecommunications towers.
(4) Recreation and entertainment.
a.  Golf courses, tennis centers, swimming pools and similar active outdoor
recreational facilities, including associated country clubs.
b.  Parks with permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting.
(5) Agricultural and related.  Horses or other domesticated equines kept on site, and
stables for such animals, only as a private residential accessory with a minimum lot area
of two acres and a maximum of one animal per acre.
(d) Site and building requirements. The following site and building requirements apply to
uses within the MDR district:
(1) Density. A maximum density of 10 dwelling units per acre regardless of the future
land use category.
(2) Floor area ratio. A maximum floor area ratio of 1.0 within the MU-S future land use
category and 2.0 within MU-U.
(3) Structure height. A maximum structure height of 45 feet. See height definition.
(4) Lot area. No minimum lot area unless prescribed by use.
(5) Lot width. Except for cul-de-sac lots which shall provide a minimum lot width of 20
feet at the street right-of-way, the following minimum lot widths are required:
a.  Single-family detached. Fifty feet at the street right-of-way for single-family
detached dwellings.
b.  Two-family. Eighty feet at the street right-of-way or two-family dwellings.
c. Multi-family and other. Eighty feet at the street right-of-way for townhouse groups and
boarding or rooming houses. No minimum lot width required by zoning for other uses.
(6) Lot coverage.  Minimum pervious lot coverage of 30 percent (70 percent maximum
semi-impervious and impervious cover) for all uses.
(7) Structure setbacks. For all principal structures, minimum setbacks are:
a.  Front and rear. Twenty feet in the front and rear.
b.  Sides. Ten feet on each side of a group of attached townhouses. On each side of all
other structures, five feet or 10 percent of the lot width at the street right-of-way,
whichever is greater, but not required to exceed 15 feet.
c.  Corner lots. Will have one front setback and one side setback.
(8) Other requirements.
a.  Stables. Stables shall be at least 50 feet from any property line and at least 130 feet
from any residential dwelling on the property of another landowner.
b.  Chapters 4 and 5. Refer to chapters 4 and 5 for additional development regulations
and standards.
(e) Location criteria. All non-residential uses within the MDR district shall be located to
avoid nuisance, hazard and other adverse impacts to surrounding residential uses.
(f) Rezoning to MDR.  Medium Density Residential zoning may be established only within
the Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) and Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) future land use
categories. The district is suitable for suburban or urban areas with central water and
sewer and developed street networks. 
The district is appropriate to provide transitions between areas zoned or used for low
density residential and areas zoned or used for high density residential or mixed-use.

Sec. 3-2.10  Commercial district (Com).
(a) Purpose. The Commercial (Com) district establishes appropriate areas and land use
regulations for general commercial activities, especially the retailing of commodities and



services. The primary intent of the district is to allow more diverse and intense
commercial uses than the neighborhood commercial allowed within the mixed-use
districts. To maintain compatibility with 
surrounding uses, all commercial operations within the Commercial district are limited to
the confines of buildings and not allowed to produce undesirable effects on surrounding
property. To retain adequate area for commercial activities, new and expanded
residential development within the district is limited, consistent with the Commercial (C)
future land use category.
(b) Permitted uses. Permitted uses within the Commercial district are limited to the
following:
(1) Residential. The following residential uses are allowed throughout the district, but if
within 
the Commercial (C) future land use category they are permitted only if part of a
predominantly commercial development:
a.  Group living, excluding dormitories, fraternity and sorority houses, and residential
facilities providing substance abuse treatment, post-incarceration reentry, or similar
services.
b.  Manufactured (mobile) homes, including new or expanded manufactured home parks
or subdivisions.
c.  Single-family dwellings (other than manufactured homes), detached or attached,
including townhouses and zero lot line subdivisions.
d.  Two-family and multi-family dwellings. See also conditional uses in this district.
(2) Retail sales. Retail sales, including Low-THC marijuana dispensing facilities, sales
of alcoholic beverages and automotive fuels, but excluding motor vehicle sales and
permanent outdoor 
storage. See also conditional uses in this district.
(3) Retail services. The following retail services, excluding permanent outdoor storage:
a.  Car washes, automatic or manual, full service or self-serve.
b.  Child care facilities.
c.  Hotels, motels and all other public lodging, including boarding and rooming houses.
d.  Personal services, including those of beauty shops, health clubs, pet groomers, dry
cleaners and tattoo parlors.
e.  Professional services, including those of realtors, bankers, accountants,
engineers, architects, dentists, physicians, and attorneys.
f.   Repair services, including appliance repair, furniture refinishing and upholstery, watch
and jewelry repair, small engine and motor services, but excluding major motor vehicle
or boat service or repair, and outdoor work.
g.  Restaurants and brewpubs, including on-premises consumption of alcoholic
beverages, drive-in and drive-through service, and brewpubs with the distribution of
on-premises produced alcoholic beverages for off-site sales. The parcel boundary of any
restaurant or brewpub with drive-in or drive- through service shall be at least 200 feet
from any LDR or MDR zoning district unless separated by a 50-foot or wider street
right-of-way.
See also conditional uses in this district.
(4) Public and civic.
a.  Broadcast stations with satellite dishes and antennas, including towers.
b.  Cemeteries, including family cemeteries.
c.  Community service facilities, including auditoriums, libraries, museums, and



neighborhood centers.
d.  Educational facilities, including preschools, K-12, colleges, and vocational schools.
e.  Emergency service facilities, including law enforcement, fire fighting, and medical
assistance.
f.   Foster care facilities.
g.  Funeral establishments.
h.  Hospitals.
i.   Offices for government agencies or public utilities.
j.   Places of worship.
k.  Public utility structures, including telecommunications towers, but excluding any
industrial uses.
l.   Warehousing or maintenance facilities for government agencies or for public utilities.
See also conditional uses in this district.
(5) Recreation and entertainment.
a.  Campgrounds and recreational vehicle parks on lots five acres or larger.
b. Indoor recreation or entertainment facilities, including movie theaters, bowling alleys,
skating rinks, arcade amusement centers, bingo facilities and shooting ranges, but
excluding bars, nightclubs or adult entertainment facilities.
c.  Marinas, private and commercial.
d.  Parks without permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting. See also conditional
uses in this district.
(6) Industrial and related.
a.  Printing, binding, lithography and publishing.
b.  Wholesale warehousing with gross floor area 10,000 sq.ft. or less per lot. See also
conditional uses in this district.
(7) Agricultural and related.
a.  Agricultural food production primarily for personal consumption by the producer, but
no farm animals.
b.  Nurseries and garden centers, including adjoining outdoor storage or display of plants.
c.  Veterinary clinics.
See also conditional uses in this district.
(8) Other uses.
a.  Billboard structures.
b.  Outdoor storage if minor and customarily incidental to the allowed principal use, and if
in the rear yard, covered, and screened from off-site view, unless otherwise noted.
c.  Parking garages and lots, commercial.
d.  Self-storage facilities, excluding vehicle rental.
(c) Conditional uses. Through the conditional use process prescribed in Chapter 2, the
BOA may conditionally allow the following uses within the Commercial district:
(1) Residential.
a.  Group living not among the permitted uses of the district.
b.  Home occupations with non-resident employees.
(2) Retail sales.
a.  Boat sales, new and used.
b.  Automobile sales, used autos only, excluding parcels fronting on any of the following
streets: 
Sorrento Road/Gulf Beach Highway/Barrancas Avenue (SR 292); Blue Angel Parkway
(SR 173); Pine Forest Road, south from Interstate 10 to State Road 173; Navy



Boulevard (SR 295 and US 98); and Scenic Highway (SR 10A and US 90). Additionally,
the parcel shall be no larger than one acre and provided with a permanent fence, wall, or
other structural barrier of sufficient height and mass along all road frontage to prevent
encroachment into the right-of way other that through approved 
site access.
c.  Automobile rental limited to the same restrictions as used automobile sales.
d.  Utility trailer, heavy truck (gross vehicle weight rating more than 8500 lbs), and
recreational vehicle sales, rental, or service limited to the same restrictions as used
automobile sales.
(3) Retail services.
a.  Restaurants not among the permitted uses of the district.
b.  Service and repair of motor vehicles, small scale (gross floor area 6000 sq. ft. or less
per lot), excluding painting and body work and outdoor work and storage.
(4) Public and civic.
a.  Cemeteries, including family cemeteries.
b.  Clubs, civic and fraternal.
c.  Cinerators.
d.  Homeless shelters.
(5) Recreation and entertainment.
a.  Bars and nightclubs.
b.  Golf courses, tennis centers, swimming pools and similar active outdoor
recreational facilities, including associated country clubs.
c.  Parks with permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting.
(6) Industrial and related.
(a) Borrow pits and reclamation activities 20 acres minimum and (subject to local permit
and development review requirements per Escambia County Code of Ordinances, Part I,
Chapter 42, article VIII, and land use and regulations in Part III, the Land Development
Code, chapter 4.  *Borrow pits are prohibited on land zoned GMD prior to the adoption of
the Commercial (Com) zoning.
(b) Microbreweries, microdistilleries, microwineries.
(7) Agricultural and related. Horses or other domesticated equines kept on site, and
stables for such animals, only as a private residential accessory with a minimum lot area
of two acres and a maximum of one animal per acre.
(8) Other uses.
a.  Outdoor sales not among the permitted uses of the district.
b.  Outdoor storage not among the permitted uses of the district, including outdoor
storage of trailered boats and operable recreational vehicles, but no repair, overhaul, or
salvage activities.  All such storage shall be screened from residential uses and
maintained to avoid nuisance conditions.
c.  Self-storage facilities, including vehicle rental as an accessory use.
d.  Structures of permitted uses exceeding the district structure height limit.
(d) Site and building requirements. The following site and building requirements apply to
uses within the Commercial district:
(1) Density. A maximum density of 25 dwelling units per acre throughout the district.
Lodging unit density not limited by zoning.
(2) Floor area ratio. A maximum floor area ratio of 1.0 within the Commercial (C) future
land use category and 2.0 within Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U).
(3) Structure height. A maximum structure height of 150 feet above adjacent grade.



(4) Lot area. No minimum lot area unless prescribed by use.
(5) Lot width. Except for cul-de-sac lots which shall provide a minimum lot width of 20
feet at the street right-of-way, the following minimum lot widths are required:
a.  Single-family detached. Forty feet at the street right-of-way for single-family
detached dwellings.
b.  Two-family. Eighty feet at the street right-of-way for two-family dwellings.
c. Multi-family and other. Eighty feet at the street right-of-way for multi-family
dwellings, boarding or rooming houses, or townhouse groups. No minimum lot width
required by zoning for other uses.
(6) Lot coverage.  Minimum pervious lot coverage of 15 percent (85 percent maximum
semi-impervious and impervious cover) for all uses.
(7) Structure setback. For all principal structures, minimum setbacks are:
a.  Front and rear. Fifteen feet in both front and rear.
b.  Sides. Ten feet on each side, including any group of attached townhouses. For
structures exceeding 35 feet above highest adjacent grade, an additional two feet for
each additional 10 feet in height.
c.  Corner lots. Will have one front setback and one side setback.
(8) Other requirements. Refer to chapters 4 and 5 for additional development regulations
and standards.
(e) Location criteria. All new non-residential uses proposed within the Commercial
district that 
are not part of a planned unit development or not identified as exempt by the district shall
be on 
parcels that satisfy at least one of the following location criteria:
(1) Proximity to intersection.  Along an arterial or collector street and within one- quarter
mile 
of its intersection with an arterial street.
(2) Proximity to traffic generator. Along an arterial or collector street and within a
one-quarter mile radius of an individual traffic generator of more than 600 daily trips,
such as an apartment complex, military base, college campus, hospital, shopping mall or
similar generator.
(3) Infill development.  Along an arterial or collector street, in an area where
already established non-residential uses are otherwise consistent with the Commercial
district, and where the new use would constitute infill development of similar intensity as
the conforming development on surrounding parcels. Additionally, the location would
promote compact development 
and not contribute to or promote strip commercial development.
(4) Site design.  Along an arterial or collector street, no more than one-half mile from
its intersection with an arterial or collector street, not abutting a single-family residential
zoning 
district (RR, LDR or MDR), and all of the following site design conditions:
a.  Any Intrusion into a recorded subdivision is limited to a corner lot.
b.  A system of service roads or shared access is provided to the maximum extent made
feasible by lot area, shape, ownership patterns, and site and street characteristics.
c. Adverse impacts to any adjoining residential uses are minimized by placing the more
intensive elements of the use, such as solid waste dumpsters and truck
loading/unloading areas, furthest from the residential uses.
(5) Documented compatibility.  A compatibility analysis prepared by the applicant



provides competent substantial evidence of unique circumstances regarding the
potential uses of parcel that were not anticipated by the alternative criteria, and the
proposed use, or rezoning as applicable, will be able to achieve long-term compatibility
with existing and potential uses. Additionally, the 
following conditions exist:
a.  The parcel has not been rezoned by the landowner from the mixed-use, commercial,
or industrial zoning assigned by the county.
b.  If the parcel is within a county redevelopment district, the use will be consistent with
the district’s adopted redevelopment plan, as reviewed and recommended by the
Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA).
(f) Rezoning to Commercial. Commercial zoning may be established only within the
Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S), Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) or Commercial (C) future land
use categories. The district is appropriate to provide transitions between areas zoned or
used as high density mixed-use and areas zoned or used as heavy commercial or
industrial. Rezoning to Commercial is subject to the same location criteria as any new
non-residential use proposed within the Commercial district.
(Ord. No. 2015-56, § 4, 12-10-2015; Ord. No. 2016-02, § 2, 1-7-2016; 2016-31 § 1,
8-4-2016; Ord. 
No. 2017-5, §,2, 1-5-20

FINDINGS
The request for rezoning of the southern parcel to Commercial is not consistent with the
intent and purpose of the Land Development Code. Based on Sec. 4-7.16 Recreational
Amenities, a subdivision or other residential development where a recreational amenity
including but not limited to a golf course, swimming pool, club house our tennis courts,
was anticipated as part of the subdivision or development regardless of whether the
amenity was included in the subdivision plat, and that amenity abuts or is otherwise
located adjacent to any portion of the subdivision, then should that amenity cease to
be used for recreational purposes, it cannot be developed or used in a manner that is
more intense than the most intense residential  use in the subdivision. 

As the two proposed parcels were part of the original ammenity, based on public
records, Scenic Hills Country Club PB 4, P77, Parcel 1, once the proposed parcels are
split from the golf course ammenity, the recreational use for those two parcels will cease
to exist. Based on the language in Sec 4-7.16 of the LDC, the most intense use for the
subdivision is MDR. Therefore, the proposed northern parcel request to MDR zoning
would be compatible with the existing subdivision. The rezoning request to Commercial
for the southern parcel will be more intense than the most intense residential use of the
subdivision MDR, and therefore, inconsistent with the Land Development Code.

Criterion c., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Compatible with surrounding uses
All the permitted uses of the proposed zoning, not just those anticipated by the rezoning
applicant, are compatible, as defined in Chapter 6, with the surrounding uses.  The uses
of any surrounding undeveloped land shall be considered the permitted uses of the
applicable district. Compatibility is not considered with potential conditional uses or with
any nonconforming or unapproved uses.  Also, in establishing the compatibility of a



residential use, there is no additional burden to demonstrate the compatibility of specific
residents or activities protected by fair housing law.

FINDINGS
Based on the surveys provided by the applicant, signed and sealed on 1-3-2018, by
David D. Glaze, Professional Surveyor, the northern parcel amendment is compatible
with surrounding existing uses in the area, as the proposed zoning of MDR is the same
as the approved original subdivision. Within the 500' radius area of the northern parcel,
staff identified properties with zoning district MDR. There are thirty seven single-family
residences, seventy one multi-family units, a Gulf Power owned parcel and a University
of West Florida parcel.

The southern parcel amendment request is not compatible with the surrounding existing
uses because it would not preserve the character and quality of residential
neighborhood. Allowing the commercial zoning as requested would in-fact promote
continuous strip commercial development along a major street, with the potential of
creating negative influences on adjacent residential neighborhoods. Therefore, it would
grant more intense uses, not compatible with the exclusive residential and recreational
use of the original development. Within the 500' radius area of the southern parcel, staff
identified properties with zoning districts, Rec, MDR, HDR and Commercial. Twenty six
single-family residences, a portion of the parcel that contains the golf course amenity,
one office complex, two vacant commercial properties, three commercial properties, one
ECUA parcel and a park-forest parcel owned by Escambia County.

Criterion d., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Appropriate if spot zoning
Where the proposed zoning would establish or reinforce a condition of spot zoning as
defined in Chapter 6, the isolated district would nevertheless be transitional in character
between the adjoining districts, or the differences with those districts would be minor or
sufficiently limited.  The extent of these mitigating characteristics or conditions
demonstrates an appropriate site specific balancing of interests between the isolated
district and adjoining lands.
As per LDC Chapter 6, Spot Zoning is: Zoning applied to an area of land, regardless of its
size, that is different from the zoning of all contiguous land. Such isolated or “spot” zoning is
usually higher in its density or intensity of use than the adjoining zoning and may, therefore,
extend privileges not generally extended to property similarly located in the area. Spot zoning is
not by itself prohibited, but due to its potentially adverse impacts on adjoining zoning it carries a
higher burden of demonstration that, if authorized, it will contribute to or result in logical and
orderly development.

FINDINGS
The entire golf course parcel was part of the original subdivision plat and it is currently
zoned Rec. Although the proposed southern parcel is located adjacent to existing
commercial zoning, the current Rec zoning serves as a buffer between the intense uses
off Nine Mile road and the residential development adjacent to the golf course. Some of
the contiguous zoning is MDR, Rec and Com; therefore the proposed zoning does not
represent a smooth transition between uses, in addition to contributing and promoting
the continuation of strip commercial developement on this area.



Criterion e., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Appropriate with changed or changing conditions
If the land uses or development conditions within the area surrounding the property of
rezoning have changed, the changes are to such a degree and character that it is in the
public interest to allow new uses, density, or intensity in the area through rezoning; and
the permitted uses of the proposed district are appropriate and not premature for the
area or likely to create or contribute to sprawl.

FINDINGS
As it relates to the parcel to the north, the typical development is residential in nature
and the request to MDR would allow for uses, densities and intensities already
comparable to the existing development. The southern parcel, is located off Nine Mile
road; the commercial development trend for Nine Mile road has focused on areas East
and West from this parcel and located near the existing major intersections. PenAir
Credit Union has been at this location on the south side on Nine Mile since 1996. No
rezonings to surrounding properties since 2007. The development conditions of this
section of Nine Mile have not drastically changed and the increase in density and
intensity is not in the public interest.  
 

Attachments
Working Case File



Z-2018-17 



GREENBRIER BLVD

WESTC L UB DR

FO
XR

UN
RD

CAMBRIDGECIR

GU
ID

Y 
LN

W
OO

DR
UN

R D

BR
UN

SO
N 

RD

JE
RN

IG
AN

 R
D

AI
RW

AY
 D

R

SCENIC

H ILLS D R

PL
AI

NF
IE

LD
AV

E
BA

RR
AN

G E
RDR

BA
RO

N
M I

L L
E R

R D

GRADUATE
WAY

FOXRUNRD

C A MPUS DR

RAMBLEW OODS
DR

VI
X E

N
PL

SIGNALHILL L N

CHISHOL M
T R L

STONE

B RIDG E RD

NORS

TUMD R

W O ODBRI DGE
DR

ZENDA
ST

SU
NN

EH
ANNA

BL
VD

E TEN MILE  RD
FOXRUNCIR

QUAIL
HOLL O W B LVD

CREEKBRIDGE RD

SUGAR

CREEK
CIR

WOODRUN
PL

COLONIALCIR
SU

GA
R

CR
EE

K 
DR

GRACE DR

E NINE MILE  RD

C A ND
LE

S T
IC

K

LN

CH
IS

HO
LM

 R
D

BEATRICE

D R

S TONE

MEADOW
RD

DAVID ST
RA

WL
IN

GS
DR

SU GARCR EEK D R

BA
NK

S
CI

R

STILL BROOKRD

COA CH
MA

N
CT

BURNINGTREE RD

E NINE MILE  RD

CAMPUS DR

TA
M 

O
SH

AN
TE

R 
RD

DANA
ST

SABLE DR

Q

UAIL

HO
L L OW CIR

HUNTSMANCIR
BLUE

FOX PL

DONS
LN

HILL VIEW DR

ASH
VI

L L
E DR

ARIES
DR

MAGAHA LN

REQUIN
LN

AU

RELIAS PL

AU
T U

MN

L N

BA
NK

S
RD

ME AD OW
BR

OO

K D R

FAIRW
A Y

VILLAS
L N

HU N TSMANP ATH

VINT AG
E

D R

WA T ERFORD LN

NO
RT

HMINST ER
LN

PEAK V I

EW

D R

C A NDLE W OO D
CI

R

COBBLESTONE

DR

B AL DRIDGE
DR

KA
W

AN
EE

DR

T HU NDERBIRD DR UN
IV

ERS IT
Y

PK
WY

UN
IV

E R
SI

TY
PK

W
Y

QU IE

T

CREE K
RD

MO Z INGO L N PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Ft

Z-2018-17
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



NONE
MDR MDR

Rec

Rec

Rec

Rec MDR

MDRMDR

MDR

MDR

GREENBRIER BLVD

HO
LL

OW
BR

OO
K

DR

W EST
CL UB DR

FO
XR

UN
RD

VI
XE

N
PL

WE

ST

CL
UB

DR

STON E

BRIDGE R D

HOUNDCHASE CIR
TA

M
O

SH
A N

T E
R RD

VI
XE

N
PL

S U
GA

R
C R

EE
K

DR

FOXRUNCIR

SCENIC HILLS DR

SUGAR

CREEK
CIR

FOXF
IR

E
PL

W
ORTH
C T

COLONIALCIR

SUGAR
CREEK DR

BURNIN G
TREE R D

FO
XR

U N
RD

HUNTSMAN

PATH

TA
M

O
SH

AN
T E

R
RD

CREEKBRIDGE RD

MEADOWBRO OK
DR

SPAL DING
CIR

THUNDERBIRD DR

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 400 800 1,200

Ft

Z-2018-17-NORTH
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

GREENBRIER BLVD



HDR

Com
Rec

Rec

MDR

Rec

MDR

HC/LI

Com
Com

ComHDMU

SUN
NE

H A
NN

A
B L

V D

WOODRUN R D

JE
RN

IG
AN

 R
D

BA
RO

N 
MI

LL
ER

 R
D

WOODRU N
RD

ZE
LD

A
ST

WO
O D

RU
N

RD

W
ES

TS
ID

E 
DR

SU
NN

EHAN N A

BLVD

SUNN
E

H AN NA

BL VD

SCENI C

HILL S
DR

E NINE
MILE RD

ZENDA ST

Q UAIL

HO
L L OW CIR

MEADOWBROO K DR

MAGAHA LN

E NINE
MIL E RD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

Z-2018-17-SOUTH
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



CON

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U
MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

GREENBRIER BLVD

HO
LL

OW
BR

OO
K

DR

W EST
CL UB DR

FO
XR

UN
RD

VI
XE

N
PL

WE

ST

CL
UB

DR

STON E

BRIDGE R D

HOUNDCHASE CIR
TA

M
O

SH
A N

T E
R RD

VI
XE

N
PL

S U
GA

R
C R

EE
K

DR

FOXRUNCIR

SCENIC HILLS DR

SUGAR

CREEK
CIR

FOXF
IR

E
PL

W
ORTH
C T

COLONIALCIR

SUGAR
CREEK DR

BURNIN G
TREE R D

FO
XR

U N
RD

HUNTSMAN

PATH

TA
M

O
SH

AN
T E

R
RD

CREEKBRIDGE RD

MEADOWBRO OK
DR

SPAL DING
CIR

THUNDERBIRD DR

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 400 800 1,200

Ft

Z-2018-17-NORTH
FUTURE LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

GREENBRIER BLVD



MU-U

C

MU-U
MU-U

C

MU-U
REC

C
MU-U

MU-U

C

SUN
NE

H A
NN

A
B L

V D

WOODRUN R D

JE
RN

IG
AN

 R
D

BA
RO

N 
MI

LL
ER

 R
D

WOODRU N
RD

ZE
LD

A
ST

WO
O D

RU
N

RD

W
ES

TS
ID

E 
DR

SU
NN

EHAN N A

BLVD

SUNN
E

H AN NA

BL VD

SCENI C

HILL S
DR

E NINE
MILE RD

ZENDA ST

Q UAIL

HO
L L OW CIR

MEADOWBROO K DR

MAGAHA LN

E NINE
MIL E RD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

Z-2018-17-SOUTH
FUTURE LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



GREENBRIER BLVD

HO
LL

OW
BR

OO
K

DR

WEST
CLUB DR

FO
XR

UN
RD

VI
X E

N
PL

WE

ST

CL
UB

DR

STONE

BRIDGE RD

HOUNDCHASE CIR
TA

M
O

SH
AN

TE
R RD

VI
XE

N
PL

SU
GA

R
CR

E E
K

DR

FOXRUNCIR

SCENIC HILLS DR

SUGARCREEK
CIR

FOXF
I R

E
PL

W
ORTH
CT

COLONIALCIR

SUGAR
CREEK DR

BURNIN G
TREE RD

FO
XR

UN
RD

HUNTSMAN

PATH

TA
M

O
SH

AN
TE

R
RD

CREEKBRIDGE RD

MEADOWBROOK
DR

SPALDING
CIR

THUNDERBIRD DR

PARCELS
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 400 800 1,200

Ft

Z-2018-17-NORTH
EXISTING LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

GREENBRIER BLVD
SFR

MF
24 UNITS

SFRSFR SFR
SFRSFR SFR

SFR
SFR

MF
39 UNITS

SFRSFR
SFR SFR

SFR
SFR

SFR

SFR

SFR

SFR

SFR

SFR

SFR

SFRSFRSFRSFRSFRSFRSFR

SFR

SFR
SFR

SFR
SFR

SFR
SFR

SFR

UNIVERSITY
OF WEST
FLORIDA

GULF 
POWER

SFR

SFR
SFR

SFR
SFR
SFR



WALMART

SU
NN

EH
AN

NA
BL

VD

WOODRUN RD

JE
RN

IG
AN

 R
D

BA
RO

N 
MI

LL
ER

 R
D

WOODRUN
RD

ZE
LD

A
ST

WO
OD

RU
N

RD

W
ES

TS
ID

E 
DR

SU
NN

EHAN N A

BLVD

SUNNE

HANNA

BL VD

SCENIC

HILLS
DR

E NINEMILE RD

ZENDA ST

QUAIL

HO L LOW CIR

MEADOWBROO K DR

MAGAHA LN

E NINE
MILE RD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
PARCELS0 300 600 900

Ft

Z-2018-17-SOUTH
EXISTING LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

OFFICE

GOLF
COURSE

SFR

SFR

SFR

SFR

SFR

SFR
SFR

SFR

SFR SFR

SFR

SFR

SFR
SFR

SFR

SFR
SFR

SFR

SFR

SFR

SFR

SFR

SFR

SFR

COM
SFR

VAC
COM

ECUA
PENAIR
FCU

VAC
COM

FOREST
PARK

SFR

CHURCH

SFR



COLONIAL CIR

VI
X E

N
PL

VI
X E

N
PL

M ID  PINES

CIR

FOXRUNCIR

W E ST CL UB DR

SC
ENIC

HI
LL

S DR

COLONIAL CIR

FOXB OROUGH DR

VI
XEN PL

FO
XR

UN
RD

BURN ING
TREE RD

FAIR
W

AY
VILLAS

LN

GREENBRIER BLVD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 200 400 600

Ft

Z-2018-17-NORTH
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



E NINE MILE  RD
W

ES
TS

ID
E 

DR

Q U
A I

L
H O

L L
OW

CT
SCEN IC

HILLS
DR

WOODRUN RD

OAKHILLS
CIR

W
OO

DR
UN

RD

QUAIL HOLLOW  CIR

MAGAHA LN

E NINE MILE  RD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
WETLANDS_20060 200 400 600

Ft

Z-2018-17-SOUTH
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



PUBLIC HEARING SIGN NORTH PARCEL



LOOKING SOUTHEAST ACROSS BURNING TREE



LOOKING SOUTHWEST ALONG BURNING TREE



LOOKING NORTHEAST ALONG BURNING TREE



LOOKING NORTH AT THE PROPOSED PARCEL AREA



PUBLIC HEARING SIGN SOUTH PARCEL



LOOKING EAST ON NINE MILE ROAD



LOOKING WEST ON NINE MILE ROAD



LOOKING SOUTH ACROSS NINE MILE ROAD



LOOKING NORTH ONTO PARCEL FROM NINE MILE 
ROAD



LOOKING SOUTHWEST ACROSS NINE MILE 



Wiley C'Buddy" Page, MPA, APA
Professional Growth Management Services, LLC

5337 Hamilton Lane Pace, Florida 32571
Cell 850.232.9853

budpaqel@att.net

August 10, 2018
VIA HAND DELIVERY

Mr. Horace Jones, Director
Department of Growth Management
3363 West Park Avenue

Pensacola, Florida 32505

Dear Mr. Jones:

RE: Rezoning request: REC. to COMM and MDR
Parcel: Portions of 06-1S-30-1000-000-024
Owner: RNL Investment Group, LLC
Address: 8891 Burning Tree Road

The attached application requests Planning Board consideration to rezone a portion
of Scenic Hills Country Club property at the southwest portion of the property as
depicted on the attached survey and location maps from Recreation to Commercial. In
addition, a second request to rezone a parcel located at the northwesterly end of the
property from REC to MDR. As shown herein, the northerly site is adjacent to property
currently zoned MDR, which is the same zoning as is being requested in the attached
application. The southerly site is adjacent and across the road from uses currently
zoned Commercial, which is the same zoning requested in the attached application. A
letter indicating Home Owner Association approval is attached. In summary, the
application is requesting two different and separate zoning categories for two sites
located on opposite ends of the same parcel of property.

The application contains the required filing fee together with additional
information regarding proof of ownership, corporate papers, a certified boundary
survey and location maps.

Please contact me if you have any questions or require anything further. Thank
you.

Wiley C/'Biifcldy" Page

LAND USE • ZONING • SITE SELECTION • LITIGATION SUPPORT





























































3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Andrew Holmer, Division Manager 
Development Services Department 

 
FROM: Terri V. Malone, AICP, Transportation Planner 
  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 

THRU: David Forte, Division Manager 
Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 

 
DATE: October 24, 2018 
 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – Z-2018-17 
 

TTO Staff has reviewed the Rezoning Case (Z)-2018-17, 8891 Burning Tree 
Road, agenda item for the Planning Board meeting scheduled on November 8, 
2018. Please see the below comments. 

 
Burning Tree Road is two lane local road with curb and gutter but no 

sidewalks.  This road is entirely located within the Scenic Hills Country Club 
Estates. The approximate pavement width in front of the club house is 22 feet.  
Most of the traffic exits this development at the signalized intersection of Scenic 
Hills Drive and E. Nine Mile Road.  E. Nine Mile Road is a 4-lane divided facility in 
front of Scenic Hills Country Club Estates. 

 
Currently, there are no on-going or programmed projects on Burning Tree 

Road showing in the County’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP).  Likewise, 
there are no ongoing or programmed projects on the adjacent segment of E. Nine 
Mile Road in either the County’s CIP or the Florida Department of 
Transportation’s five-year work program. 

 
Burning Tree Road is classified as a local roadway and assumed to be 

functioning within its allowable capacity for traffic volumes. Per the TPO’s 
Congestion Management Process Plan, E. Nine Mile Road is classified as a 
Principal Arterial with an allowable vehicular capacity of 74,400 (LOS D) and a 
year 2017 daily volume of 37,500 vehicles. 

 
TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the 

comments above hold no bearing on any future TTO comments during the 
Development Review process. 

  
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 



Joy Jones, P.E., Public Works Department Director 
 Colby Brown, P.E., Public Works Department Deputy Director 
 Juan Lemos, CFM, Development Services Department 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   7. E.           
Meeting Date: 11/08/2018  
CASE : Z-2018-18
APPLICANT: Kshitij Patel, Agent for Michael and Tammy Matcke, Owners 

ADDRESS: 5950 West Nine Mile Road 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 06-1S-31-4402-000-001
FUTURE LAND USE: MU-S, Mixed-Use Suburban  
DISTRICT: 1  
OVERLAY DISTRICT: AIPD-2 

BCC MEETING DATE: 12/06/2018 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: LDR, Low Density Residential district (four du/acre)

TO: HDMU, High Density Mixed-use district (25 du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469
(Fla. 1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

APPROVAL CONDITIONS

Criterion a., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with Comprehensive Plan
The proposed zoning is consistent with the future land use (FLU) category as prescribed
in LDC Chapter 3, and with all other applicable goals, objectives, and policies of the
Comprehensive Plan.  If the rezoning is required to properly enact a proposed FLU map
amendment transmitted for state agency review, the proposed zoning is consistent with
the proposed FLU and conditional to its adoption.

CPP FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories. The Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) Future
Land Use (FLU) category is intended for a mix of residential and non-residential uses
while promoting compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban
land uses. Range of Allowable Uses: residential, retail sales & services, professional
office, recreational facilities, public and civic, limited agriculture. The maximum



residential density is 25 dwelling units per acre.

CPP FLU 1.5.1 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas. To promote the
efficient use of existing public roads, utilities, and service infrastructure, the County will
encourage the redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize development
densities and intensities located in the MU-S, MU-U, Commercial, and Industrial Future
Land Use categories (with the exception of residential development).

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment to HDMU is consistent with the intent and purpose of Future
Land Use category MU-S as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1. The FLU category allows for a
mixture of commercial and residential development. The property is located along Nine
Mile Rd, a minor arterial, and currently has a commercial business on the corner of Nine
Mile and Beulah as well as a mobile home park. There are several other commercial
developments in the area of the proposed zoning.The amendment is also consistent with
the intent of FLU 1.5.1, by making use of the existing public roads and the availability of
utilities and service infrastructure.

Criterion b., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with The Land Development Code
The proposed zoning is consistent with the purpose and intent and with any other zoning
establishment provisions prescribed by the proposed district in Chapter 3.
  
Sec. 3-2.5 Low Density Residential district (LDR).
(a) Purpose. The Low Density Residential (LDR) district establishes appropriate areas
and land use regulations for residential uses at low densities within suburban areas. The
primary intent of the district is to provide for large-lot suburban type residential
neighborhood development that blends aspects of rural openness with the benefits of
urban street connectivity, and at greater density than the Rural Residential district.

Sec. 3-2.6 Low Density Mixed-use district (LDMU).
(a) Purpose. The Low Density Mixed-use (LDMU) district establishes appropriate areas
and land use regulations for a complementary mix of low density residential uses and
compatible non-residential uses within mostly suburban areas. The primary intent of the
district is to provide for a mix of neighborhood-scale retail sales, services and
professional offices with greater dwelling unit density and diversity than the Low Density
Residential district. Additionally, the LDMU district is intended to rely on a pattern of
well-connected streets and provide for the separation of suburban uses from more dense
and intense urban uses. Residential uses within the district include most forms of
single-family, two-family and multi-family dwellings.

(e) Location criteria. All new non-residential uses proposed within the LDMU district that
are not part of a predominantly residential development or a planned unit development,
or are not identified as exempt by district regulations, shall be on parcels that satisfy at
least one of the following location criteria:
(1) Proximity to intersection. Along an arterial or collector street, and within 200 feet of
an intersection with another arterial or collector.
(2) Proximity to traffic generator. Along an arterial or collector street and within a



(2) Proximity to traffic generator. Along an arterial or collector street and within a
one-quarter mile radius of an individual traffic generator of more than 600 daily trips,
such as an apartment complex, military base, college campus, hospital, or shopping
mall.
(3) Infill development. Along an arterial or collector street, in an area where already
established non-residential uses are otherwise consistent with the LDMU district, and
where the new use would constitute infill development of similar intensity as the
conforming development on surrounding parcels. Additionally, the location would
promote compact development and not contribute to or promote strip commercial
development.
(4) Site design. Along an arterial street and at the intersection with a local street that
serves to connect the arterial street to another arterial, and all of the following site design
conditions:
a. Any intrusion into a recorded residential subdivision is limited to a corner lot
b. Access and stormwater management is shared with adjoining uses or properties to the
extent practicable.
c. Adverse impacts to any adjoining residential uses are minimized by placing the more
intensive elements of the use (solid waste dumpsters, truck loading/unloading areas,
drive-thru facilities, etc.) furthest from the residential uses.
(5) Documented compatibility. A compatibility analysis prepared by the applicant
provides competent substantial evidence of unique circumstances regarding the parcel
or use that were not anticipated by the alternative location criteria, and the proposed use
will be able to achieve long-term compatibility with existing and potential uses.
Additionally, that the following conditions exist:
a. The parcel has not been rezoned by the landowner from mixed-use, commercial, or
industrial zoning assigned by the county.
b. If the parcel is within a county redevelopment area, the use will be consistent with the
area’s adopted redevelopment plan, as reviewed and recommended by the Community
Redevelopment Agency (CRA).

Sec. 3-2.9 High Density Mixed-use district (HDMU).
(a) Purpose. The High Density Mixed-use (HDMU) district establishes appropriate areas
and land use regulations for a complimentary mix of high density residential uses and
compatible non-residential uses within urban areas. The primary intent of the district is to
provide for a mix of neighborhood retail sales, services and professional offices with
greater dwelling unit density and diversity than the Low Density Mixed-use district.
Additionally, the HDMU district is intended to rely on urban street connectivity and
encourage vertical mixes of commercial and residential uses within the same building to
accommodate a physical pattern of development characteristic of village main streets
and older neighborhood commercial areas. Residential uses within the district include all
forms of single-family, two-family and multi-family dwellings.
(b) Permitted uses. Permitted uses within the HDMU district are limited to the following:
(1) Residential. The following residential uses are allowed throughout the district, but if
within a Commercial (C) future land use category they are permitted only if part of a
predominantly commercial development.
a. Group living, excluding dormitories, fraternity and sorority houses, and residential
facilities providing substance abuse treatment, post-incarceration reentry, or similar
services.



b. Manufactured (mobile) homes, including manufactured home subdivisions, but
excluding new or expanded manufactured home parks.
c. Single-family dwellings (other than manufactured homes), detached or attached,
including townhouses and zero lot line subdivisions.
d. Two-family and multi-family dwellings.
See also conditional uses in this district.
(2) Retail sales. Small-scale (gross floor area 6000 sq.ft. or less per lot) retail sales,
including Low-THC marijuana dispensing facilities, sales of beer and wine, but excluding
sales of liquor, automotive fuels, or motor vehicles, and excluding permanent outdoor
storage, display, or sales. See also conditional uses in this district.
(3) Retail services. The following small-scale (gross floor area 6000 sq.ft. or less per lot)
retail services, excluding outdoor work or permanent outdoor storage:
a. Bed and breakfast inns.
b. Boarding and rooming houses.
c. Child care facilities.
d. Personal services, including those of beauty shops, health clubs, pet groomers, dry
cleaners, and tattoo parlors.
e. Professional services, including those of realtors, bankers, accountants, engineers,
architects, dentists, physicians, and attorneys.
f. Repair services, including appliance repair, furniture refinishing and upholstery, watch
and jewelry repair, small engine and motor services, but excluding major motor vehicle
or boat service or repair.
g. Restaurants, and brewpubs, including on-premises consumption of alcoholic
beverages, but excluding drive-in or drive-through service and brewpubs with distribution
of alcoholic beverages for off-site sales.
See also conditional uses in this district.
(4) Public and civic.
a. Preschools and kindergartens.
b. Emergency service facilities, including law enforcement, fire fighting, and medical
assistance.
c. Foster care facilities.
d. Places of worship.
e. Public utility structures, excluding telecommunications towers.
See also conditional uses in this district.
(5) Recreation and entertainment.
a. Marinas, private only.
b. Parks without permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting.
See also conditional uses in this district.
(6) Industrial and related No industrial or related uses.
(7) Agricultural and related. Agricultural production limited to food primarily for personal
consumption by the producer, but no farm animals.
(8) Other uses. [Reserved]
(c) Conditional uses. Through the conditional use process prescribed in Chapter 2, the
BOA may conditionally allow the following uses within the HDMU district:
(1) Residential.
a. Dormitories.
b. Fraternity and sorority houses.
c. Manufactured (mobile) home parks.



(2) Retail sales. Medium-scale (gross floor area greater than 6000 sq.ft. per lot, but no
greater than 35,000 sq.ft.) retail sales, including sales of beer and wine and automotive
fuels, but excluding sales of motor vehicles and liquor, and excluding permanent outdoor
storage, display, or sales.
(3) Retail services.
a. Medium-scale (gross floor area greater than 6000 sq. ft. per lot, but no greater than
35,000 sq. ft.) retail services, excluding motor vehicle service and repair.
b. Restaurants and brewpubs with drive-in or drive-through service and brewpubs with
the distribution of on-premises produced alcoholic beverages for off-site sales.
c. Small-scale (gross floor area 6000 sq.ft. or less per lot) major motor vehicle service
and repair, excluding painting or body work and outdoor work.
(4) Public and civic.
a. Broadcast stations with satellite dishes and antennas, excluding towers.
b. Cemeteries, including family cemeteries.
c. Clubs, civic and fraternal.
d. Community service facilities, including auditoriums, libraries, museums, and
neighborhood centers.
e. Cinerators.
f. Educational facilities not among the permitted uses of the district.
g. Funeral establishments.
h. Hospitals.
i. Offices for government agencies or public utilities.
j. Public utility structures exceeding the district structure height limit and
telecommunications towers of any height, excluding any industrial uses.
k. Warehousing or maintenance facilities for government agencies or public utilities.
(5) Recreation and entertainment.
a. Amusement arcade centers and bingo facilities.
b. Golf courses, tennis centers, swimming pools and similar active outdoor recreational
facilities, including associated country clubs.
c. Parks with permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting.
(6) Industrial and related. Microbreweries, microdistilleries, and microwineries
(7) Agricultural and related.
a. Horses or other domesticated equines kept on site, and stables for such animals, only
as a private residential accessory with a minimum lot area of two acres and a maximum
of one animal per acre.
b. Veterinary clinics.
(8) Other uses.
a. Self-storage facilities with a maximum lot area of one acre and outdoor storage limited
to operable motor vehicles and boats. No vehicle rental.
b. Structures of permitted uses exceeding the district structure height limit, excluding
telecommunications towers.

(e) Location criteria. All new non-residential uses proposed within the HDMU district that
are not part of a predominantly residential development or a planned unit development,
or are not identified as exempt by district regulations, shall be on parcels that satisfy at
least one of the following location criteria:
(1) Proximity to intersection. Along an arterial or collector street and within 200 feet of an
intersection with another arterial or collector.



(2) Proximity to traffic generator. Along an arterial or collector street and within a
one-quarter mile radius of an individual traffic generator of more than 600 daily trips,
such as an apartment complex, military base, college campus, hospital, shopping mall or
similar generator.
(3) Infill development. Along an arterial or collector street, in an area where already
established non-residential uses are otherwise consistent with the HDMU district, and
where the new use would constitute infill development of similar intensity as the
conforming development on surrounding parcels. Additionally, the location would
promote compact development and not contribute to or promote strip commercial
development.
(4) Site design. Along an arterial street and at the intersection with a local street that
serves to connect the arterial street to another arterial, and all of the following site design
conditions:
a. Any intrusion into a recorded residential subdivision is limited to a corner lot
b. Access and stormwater management is shared with adjoining uses or properties to the
extent practicable.
c. Adverse impacts to any adjoining residential uses are minimized by placing the more
intensive elements of the use, such as solid waste dumpsters and truck
loading/unloading areas, furthest from the residential uses.
(5) Documented compatibility. A compatibility analysis prepared by the applicant
provides competent substantial evidence of unique circumstances regarding the parcel
or use that were not anticipated by the alternative criteria, and the proposed use will be
able to achieve long-term compatibility with existing and potential uses. Additionally, the
following conditions exist:
a. The parcel has not been rezoned by the landowner from the mixed-use, commercial,
or industrial zoning assigned by the county.
b. If the parcel is within a county redevelopment district, the use will be consistent with
the district’s adopted redevelopment plan, as reviewed and recommended by the
Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA).

Sec. 4-4.5 Airport and airfield planning districts.
(b) Military Airfield Influence Planning Districts. Airfield Influence Planning Districts
(AIPDs) are established to provide enhanced protection in support of the continued
operation of military airfields for areas that are close enough to those airfields to
influence or be influenced by their activities. AIPDs impose additional restrictions on
surrounding development that primarily address noise and safety concerns created by
flight operations and potential interferences with those operations. If military operations
permanently cease at an airfield, the supplemental requirements of its AIPDs will no
longer apply to surrounding lands.
(6) AIPD-2 requirements. AIPD-2 is additional areas extended beyond AIPD-1 that is
sufficiently close to the airfield to require some protections. AIPD-2 requirements are the
same for all airfields. Densities and minimum lot sizes of the underlying zoning districts
are not modified by AIPD-2.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is not consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land
Development Code. The primary intent of the HDMU district is to provide for a mix of
neighborhood retail sales, services and professional offices with greater dwelling unit



density and diversity than the Low Density Residential district. The HDMU zoning district
is also meant to provide transitions between areas zoned or used for medium or high
density residential (MDR or HDR zoning) and areas zoned or used for commercial. The
subject property is surrounded by Commercial (Com) zoned property to the east and
LDR zoned property to the west. There is no MDR or HDR zoning in the surrounding
area therefore HDMU would not provide the transition between the LDR and Com zoned
property in the area.

Now a more suitable designation for the subject property may be LDMU. The primary
intent of the LDMU district is to provide for a mix of neighborhood-scale retail sales,
services and professional offices with greater dwelling unit density and diversity than the
Low Density Residential district. A rezoning to HDMU would result in the maximum
density of 25 dwelling units per acre, where as LDMU would result in a density of 7
dwelling units per acre. The LDMU district establishes appropriate areas and land use
regulations for a complementary mix of low density residential uses and compatible
non-residential uses within mostly suburban areas. Additionally, the LDMU district is
intended to rely on a pattern of well-connected streets and provide for the separation of
suburban uses from more dense and intense urban uses. A rezoning to LDMU may
provide the transition between the Com zoned property to the east and the LDR zoned
property to the west. The rezoning also appears to meet the location criteria of the
HDMU zoning district as the subject property is within 600 feet of a traffic generator
(Beulah Middle School). The rezoning is not influenced by AIPD-2 regulations.Now 
 

Criterion c., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Compatible with surrounding uses
All the permitted uses of the proposed zoning, not just those anticipated by the rezoning
applicant, are compatible, as defined in Chapter 6, with the surrounding uses.  The uses
of any surrounding undeveloped land shall be considered the permitted uses of the
applicable district. Compatibility is not considered with potential conditional uses or with
any nonconforming or unapproved uses.  Also, in establishing the compatibility of a
residential use, there is no additional burden to demonstrate the compatibility of specific
residents or activities protected by fair housing law.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area.
Within the 500 radius impact area, staff observed properties with zoning districts LDR,
Com and HC/LI (Heavy Commercial/LIght Industrial). The new Beulah Middle School, a
storage facility, retails sales, an animal hospial, and vacant commercial property were
found in the area. The subject property is single-family residential. A trailer park is
located directly east of the site. A vacant residental lot and a single-family dwelling is
located to the west.

Criterion d., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Appropriate if spot zoning



Appropriate if spot zoning
Where the proposed zoning would establish or reinforce a condition of spot zoning as
defined in Chapter 6, the isolated district would nevertheless be transitional in character
between the adjoining districts, or the differences with those districts would be minor or
sufficiently limited.  The extent of these mitigating characteristics or conditions
demonstrates an appropriate site specific balancing of interests between the isolated
district and adjoining lands.
As per LDC Chapter 6, Spot Zoning is: Zoning applied to an area of land, regardless of its
size, that is different from the zoning of all contiguous land.  Such isolated or “spot” zoning is
usually higher in its density or intensity of use than the adjoining zoning and may, therefore,
extend privileges not generally extended to property similarly located in the area.  Spot zoning is
not by itself prohibited, but due to its potentially adverse impacts on adjoining zoning it carries a
higher burden of demonstration that, if authorized, it will contribute to or result in logical and
orderly development.

FINDINGS
The proposed rezoning to HDMU or LDMU, as speciified in Criterion B above to be a
more suitable zoning, would both result in an isolated zoning district as indicated in the
existing zoning map. However, LDMU zoning designation could provide a better
transition between the Commercial zoned property to the east and LDR zoned property
to the west. Note rezoning case Z-2018-05 that was approved on 06/07/2018. This
property is abutting the subject parcel and was zoned HDMU and approved to Com. See
attached Exhibit A.

Criterion e., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Appropriate with changed or changing conditions
If the land uses or development conditions within the area surrounding the property of
rezoning have changed, the changes are to such a degree and character that it is in the
public interest to allow new uses, density, or intensity in the area through rezoning; and
the permitted uses of the proposed district are appropriate and not premature for the
area or likely to create or contribute to sprawl.

FINDINGS
The land uses or development conditions within the area surrounding the property of
rezoning have changed. The area along Nine Mile Rd is growing with the additions to
Navy Federal, upcoming subdivisions, a new middle school and improvements to Nine
Mile Rd.  Several rezonings have been requested in the area. See attached Exhibit A for
rezoning cases in the surrounding area.

 

Attachments
Working Case File



Z-2018-18 



BLAKE  E VAN CIR

BLAKE
EVAN CIR

BE
UL

A H
RD

A L LE G HE N Y
AV E

AL
LE

GH
E N

Y
AV

E

CHESTERDR

L U T OO
LN

FORT DE
PO

S I
T

DR
BOO
LN

ARC H

AVE

MOBILEHWY

BR
ID

LE
W

OO
D 

RD

WILD
ROSE LN

TISDALE LN

MEADOWFIELD CIR

CATTLE DR

DA
RL

EN
E 

CI
R

ARCH A VE

REBEL

RD

CHEST ERDR

W N INE MILE  RD

BEULAH CHURCH RD

SUWANEE RD

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Ft

Z-2018-18
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



W NINE MILE  RD

BE
UL

AH
 R

D

BLAKE EVAN CIR

Com

LDR

ComLDR

LDR

MDR

HC/LI

Com

HC/LI

LDR

ComLDR

BLAKE EVAN CIR

ALLEGHENY

AVE

W NINE MILE  RD

AR C H
A V E

BE
UL

AH
 R

D

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

Z-2018-18
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



W NINE MILE  RD

BLAKE EVAN CIR

MU-S
MU-S

MU-S

MU-S

MU-S

CMU-S
CMU-S

BLAKE EVAN CIR

ALLEGHENY

AVE

W NINE MILE  RD

AR C H
A V E

BE
UL

AH
 R

D

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

Z-2018-18
FUTURE LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



BLAKE EVAN CIR

AL
LE

GH
E N

Y
AV

E

ALL EGHENY

AVE

WALTERFRANKLIN RD

JO
HN

DA
VI

D 
DR

W N INE MILE RD

AR CH
A V E

BE
UL

AH
 R

D

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

Z-2018-18
EXISTING LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

W NINE MILE RD

COM

VAC

COM

MH PARK

VAC

COM

SF SF

COM
VAC

VAC

SCHOOL
VAC

VAC



W NINE MILE  RD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 100 200 300

Ft

Z-2018-18
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



W NINE MILE  RD

BLAKE EVAN CIR

AIPD 2

AIPD 1

AIPD 2

AIPD 2

AIPD 2

BLAKE EVAN CIR

ALLEGHENY

AVE

W NINE MILE  RD

AR C H
A V E

BE
UL

AH
 R

D

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

Z-2018-18
AIPD OVERLAY

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



0

Z-2006-72
2006-09/25/2006

R-1 to C-2
WITHDRAWN

Z-2005-65
APPROVED

2005-01/05/2006
RR to V-2

APPROVED
Z-2003-20

REMANDED
2003-08/07/2003

RR to R-1
WITHDRAWN

Z-2000-40
APPROVED

2000-11/02/2000
R-1 to C-1

Z-2001-50
APPROVED
2002-07/02/2002
R-1 to ID-CP
REMANDED TWICE BY BCC ALSO SEE Z-2000-40

ALLEGHENY
AVE

W NINE MILE RD

ALLEGHENY
AVE

AR
CH

AV
E

BE
UL

AH
 R

D

EXHIBIT A: REZONINGS WITHIN 500 FT RADIUS

1 inch = 200.19 feetPlanning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Caleb MacCartee Ü

Z-2018-05
APPROVED

2018- 06/07/2018
HDMU to Com



PUBLIC HEARING SIGN



LOOKING NORTH ONTO SUBJECT PROPERTY



LOOKING EAST ALONG NINE MILE RD



LOOKING WEST ALONG NINE MILE RD



LOOKING SOUTH FROM SUBJECT PROPERTY



LOOKING SOUTH ACROSS NINE MILE RD



Last Updated: 10/6/17-FteDning

Escambia County Planning and Zoning
Development Services Department

3363 West Park Place

Pensacola, FL 32505

Phone: (850) 595-3475 • Fax: (850) 595-3481

http://myescambia.com/business/ds

Rszoning Application f
FOROFRCEUSEONLY- Case Number: 2^^'^ Accepted by: t'H PBMeeting: {WJji^jv

1. Cbntact Information:

A. RopertyQA/ner/Applicant: matckemichael r& matcketammyw

Mailing Address: 5950 w nine mile rd pen^cola, fl 32526

Business Fhone: Cell: 850-377-2636 850-698-8753

Snail: mmatcke@gmail.com whynet67@gmail.com

B. Authorized Agent (if applicable): ^^VlT T 1 J 9 frTP L
Mailing Address: £rtr 27, 9, frlT £-P-frS.S P£- . %̂ 5 fr^vfi-.H ,3P^*G
Business Fhone: °\ O^-^^^f -6^-q ^Cell:

Note: CM/ner must completethe attached Agent Affidavit. Ifthere ismore than one owner, each owner must

completean Agent Affidavit. Application will be voided ifchanges to thisapplicationare found.

2. Roperty Information:

A Existing Sreet Address: 5950 wnine mile rd pensacola. fl 32526

Farcel ID (s): O6IS314402000001

B. Total acreage of the subject property: _9J_

C Existing Zoning: ldr

Proposed 2bning:HDMu j explain why necessary and/or appropriate

Changing zoning to become consistent with surrounding commercial
development.

FLU Category: mu-s

-2-



















 

3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Andrew Holmer, Division Manager 

Development Services Department 
 
FROM: Terri V. Malone, AICP, Transportation Planner 

  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 

THRU: David Forte, Division Manager 

Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 

 
DATE: October 24, 2018 

 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – Z-2018-18 
 

TTO Staff has reviewed the Rezoning Case (Z)-2018-18, 5950 W. Nine Mile 
Road (SR 10), agenda item for the Planning Board meeting scheduled on 
November 8, 2018. Please see the below comments. 

 
Currently, this section of W. Nine Mile Road is a two lane facility with paved 

shoulders but no curb and gutter or sidewalks.  The approximate pavement width 
in front of the property is 32 feet with two 12-foot travel lanes and 4-foot 
shoulders.  The posted speed is 55 MPH. 

 
Currently, there are no on-going or programmed projects on W. Nine Mile 

Road showing in the County’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP).  Likewise, this 
section of the State Route 10 shows no ongoing or programmed projects in the 
Florida Department of Transportation’s five-year work program. 

 
Per the TPO’s Congestion Management Process Plan, this section of W. 

Nine Mile Road is classified as a minor arterial with an allowable vehicular 
capacity of 17,300 (LOS C) and a year 2017 daily volume of 4,900 vehicles.   

 
TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the 

comments above hold no bearing on any future TTO comments during the 
Development Review process. 

  
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Jones, P.E., Public Works Department Director 
 Colby Brown, P.E., Public Works Department Deputy Director 
 Caleb MacCartee, Development Services Department 



10/24/2018 Mail - cgmaccartee@myescambia.com

https://outlook.office365.com/owa/?realm=myescambia.com&exsvurl=1&ll-cc=1033&modurl=0&path=/mail/search 1/2

RE: Z-2018-18

Good Morning Caleb,
 
Just wanted to respond to your ques�on regarding Beulah Middle School.  David and I discussed it and with 600 daily trips as the trip generator threshold, Beulah
middle school should be considered a generator.  The school has a capacity of around 1,200 students and with the corresponding trip genera�on rate of 1.62 trip per
day, it could produce 1,944 trips.
 
Regards,
 
Terri V. Malone, AICP
Engineering Program Coordinator
 

Escambia County
Public Works – Transporta�on & Traffic Opera�ons
3363 Park Place, Pensacola, FL 32505
Work (850) 595-3425   Mobile (850) 490-0915
 
From: David V. Forte  
Sent: Thursday, October 18, 2018 2:42 PM 
To: Terri V. Malone <TVMALONE@myescambia.com> 
Cc: Caleb G. MacCartee <cgmaccartee@myescambia.com> 
Subject: Fwd: Z-2018-18
 
Terri,
 
Please review. 

Sent from my iPhone
 
Begin forwarded message:

From: "Caleb G. MacCartee" <cgmaccartee@myescambia.com> 
To: "David V. Forte" <DVFORTE@myescambia.com> 
Cc: "Horace L Jones" <HLJONES@myescambia.com>, "Allyson Cain" <MACAIN@myescambia.com> 
Subject: Z-2018-18

David,
 
A rezoning request is under review at 5950 W Nine Mile Rd. The applicant is asking to go from LDR to HDMU zoning. See
attached. 
 
Question:
 
Would the new Beulah Middle School be considered a "traffic generator of more than 600 daily trip"?  I do not believe any
other location criteria can be meet at this time except this one and the applicant has not provided any additional
documents. See below excerpt from the LDC concerning location criteria:
 
(e) Location criteria. All new non-residential uses proposed within the HDMU district that are not part of a predominantly residential development or
a planned unit development, or are not identified as exempt by district regulations, shall be on parcels that satisfy at least one of the following
location criteria:
(1) Proximity to intersection. Along an arterial or collector street and within 200 feet of an intersection with another arterial or collector.
(2) Proximity to traffic generator. Along an arterial or collector street and within a one-quarter mile radius of an individual traffic generator of more
than 600 daily trips, such as an apartment complex, military base, college campus, hospital, shopping mall or similar generator.

Terri V. Malone

Mon 10/22/2018 8:32 AM

To:Caleb G. MacCartee <cgmaccartee@myescambia.com>;

Cc:David V. Forte <DVFORTE@myescambia.com>;

mailto:cgmaccartee@myescambia.com
mailto:DVFORTE@myescambia.com
mailto:HLJONES@myescambia.com
mailto:MACAIN@myescambia.com


10/24/2018 Mail - cgmaccartee@myescambia.com

https://outlook.office365.com/owa/?realm=myescambia.com&exsvurl=1&ll-cc=1033&modurl=0&path=/mail/search 2/2

(3) Infill development. Along an arterial or collector street, in an area where already established non-residential uses are otherwise consistent with
the HDMU district, and where the new use would constitute infill development of similar intensity as the conforming development on surrounding
parcels. Additionally, the location would promote compact development and not contribute to or promote strip commercial development.
(4) Site design. Along an arterial street and at the intersection with a local street that serves to connect the arterial street to another arterial, and all
of the following site design conditions:
a. Any intrusion into a recorded residential subdivision is limited to a corner lot
b. Access and stormwater management is shared with adjoining uses or properties to the extent practicable.
 
Any additional comments from Traffic Engineering are welcome.
 
Thanks in advance,
 
Caleb G. MacCartee
Urban Planner II
Development Services Department
Escambia County BCC
3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, FL 32505
(850) 595-3475 Main
(850) 595-3557 Fax
 
Florida has a very broad public records law. Under Florida law, both the content of emails and email addresses are public records. If you do no want the
content of your email or your email address release in response to a public records request, do no send electronic mail to this en�ty. Instead, contact this
office by phone or in person.
 
This verification relates to zoning for the specified property and is provided for information purposes only. This email does not imply or confer
development rights for any desired use or activity on the specified parcel. Prior to the issuance of any permits, the applicant must submit a complete
application to the County and must comply with all other applicable State and Local Regulations.

 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   7. F.           
Meeting Date: 11/08/2018  
Issue: A Public Hearing Concerning Vested Rights Determination
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
That the Planning Board review and make recommendation to the Board of County
Commisioners (BCC) on the following Vested Rights case:
Case No.: VRD-2018-01
Project Address: 3411 John Street
Property Reference No.: 16-2S-30-1001-330-004
Zoning District: HDMU, High Density Mixed-use district (25 du/acre)
FLU Category: MU-U, Mixed-Use Urban
Vested Rights for: Allow a MH in HDMU zoning
Applicant: Tanaya Rosa, Agent for Keith L. Davis, Owner

BACKGROUND:
In 2011, the applicant applied for and was granted a rezoning from R-4 to R-5 , which is
now HDMU zoning for the parcel located at 3411 John Street. The parcel is within the
Englewood Overlay and during the rezoning meeting in 2011, the Community and
Redevelopment Agency (CRA) stated, "The CRA does not support an increase in high
density residential, R-5, as it allows for more intense development..". This issue was
noted at the Planning Board, who made a unanimous vote to recommend approval to the
Board of County Commissioners (BCC), who in turn the approved the rezoning.
Following the approval of the rezoning, the applicant had severe medical issues and was
not able to go forward with placing a mobile home on the lot, but has since purchased a
mobile home for the lot.  HDMU allows for mobile homes, although there is a prohibition
within the Englewood Overlay as specified in the LDC in affect as of April 15, 2015. 

CRITERIA FOR VESTED RIGHTS:
An owner shall be entitled to a determination of vested rights only if through substantial
competent evidence it can be established that the proposed use of the property meets
the concurrency provisions of Article 5 and in addition one of the following criteria has
been met:

CRITERION 1:
The proposed use was authorized pursuant to a county development order, or



The proposed use was authorized pursuant to a county development order, or
equivalent, issued on or before the effective date of this Code, or a pertinent amendment
thereto, and the development has commenced and is continuing in good faith. In a claim
based upon this criterion, the owner must produce evidence of actions and
accomplishments that substantiate timely and lawful progression towards the completion
of the intentions and plans documented in the original order, or equivalent. In a claim
based upon this criterion, the right to which the owner may be vested is a continuation of
the original order, or equivalent.

FINDINGS:
The property in question received a approval of a rezoning to R-5 (now HDMU) by the
BCC in 2011 with discussions of the placement of a mobile home. The rezoning allowed
any and all permitted uses in that district to be developed. The owner was of the
understanding that the approval of the rezoning allowed the placement of a mobile home
on site and was with good intentions was in the process until he had serious medical
issues that prevented him from moving forward.

CRITERION 2:
The owner is determined to have acquired rights due to good faith reliance on an act of
commission or omission of the County which has caused the owner to make such a
substantial change in position or to incur such extensive obligations and expenses that it
would be highly inequitable and unjust to destroy the rights acquired. In a claim based
upon this criterion, the owner must document, and the County must verify, the
obligations and expenses that are in jeopardy. The owner must produce evidence of
actions and accomplishments that substantiate timely and lawful progression towards
the completion of the intentions and plans that have been jeopardized. Evidence
including, but not limited to, that which demonstrates that such activity has not
progressed in such a manner may be sufficient to negate a finding of good faith on the
part of the owner and therefore invalidate the claim to vested rights.

FINDINGS:
Due to the fact that the owner received a rezoning and there were discussions regarding
the placement of a mobile home, the applicant had good intentions and plans to
purchase the home for the parcel in question. The applicant has produced
documentation, which we as staff have verified, that he was under doctors care and he
states his medical condition was such that he was not able to complete the purchase of
the mobile home to be placed on site until this year.

Attachments
Working Case File



M
A R

KE T
S T

L UKE ST

O LD

FA IRF IEL D DR

N W
 ST

W F ISHER ST

N
R ST

DO G WOO D
PL

W AVERY ST
RUBY

AV E

N 
Z 

ST

N 
V 

ST

N S ST

W AVERY ST

PEAGL ER

PLAZA
RD MISSION

RD

N 
R 

ST

MA R KET
STHOLLYW

O OD
AVE

RHYTHM ST

N 
Z 

ST

FENNEL
ST

HUNT ER
AVEHARMONY

AVE

ER
RE

SS
BL

VD

EM
ER

A L
D

A V
E

UTAHCT

KE
LL

 D
R

GA
RY

AV
E

W CROSS ST

W SCOTT ST

N L
ST

N 
PA

CE
 B

LV
D

GEORGIA
DR

L IM E
ST

DES

M ONDED R FL ETCHERDR

EDISON DR

N 
Y 

ST
N

X
ST

N 
U 

ST

PA UL
ST

N
E W

MEXICO

DR

MELODY LN

LA
RR

Y
AV

E

S MADISON DR

W YONGE ST

NEW YORK DR

GL
EN

W
OO

D
A V

E

FRANKLIN
AVE

ANDREW
 AVE

WEBSTER DR

W BOBE ST

W HATTON ST

NO
RT

HV
IE

W
DR

W BAARS ST

NQ
ST

PL E A SANTA V E

W YONGE
ST

W HERMAN AVE

TRENTON
DR

W J ORDAN ST

W M AXWELL  ST

M ASSACH US ET TS

AVE

W HAYES ST

W HERNANDEZ ST

ST CATHERINE AVE

W CROSS ST

ST MARY AVE

W M ALLORY ST

W LAKEVIEW AVE

W CROSS ST

W LEONARD ST

W SCOTT ST

W M ORENO ST

W FISHER ST

N 
N 

ST

W BOBE ST

N 
P 

ST

W M ALLORYST

OA
KW

OO
D

AV
E

N 
Q 

ST

W M ALLORY ST

N 
T 

ST

N 
R 

ST

W CROSSSTT O P A Z

A V E

BO
RD

ER
 S

T
W FAIRFIELD DR

EL PASO
CIR

HO
LL

YW

OO D
AV

E

W
FAIRFIELD DR

FI
RE

MA
N 

DR

NEW WARRINGTON

SPUR

N 
P 

ST

MELODY LN

WFISHER
ST

WYOMING ST

JOHN
ST

NE
VADA

CIR

DELANO ST

S AINT

MA

R K STLUKE
ST

W HERNANDEZST

W YONGE ST

W M AXWELL  ST
W J ORDAN ST

W BOBE
ST

DELANO ST

CLAY STCL AY ST

TOWN ST

BARFIELD
AVE

N 
N 

ST

W FAIRFIEL D
DR

DOGWOOD DR

SUBURBANDR

E
M

AD
IS

ON
D R

A QUAMARI N E
AV

E

WEBB LN

KE
AR

NY
DR

OP
AL

AV
E

GARY
CIR

MICHAEL DR

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Ft

VRD-2018-01
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



HC/LI HC/LI

HC/LI

Com

HDR

HDR

HDMU

HDR

HDMU

HDMU

HDR

HC/LI
HC/LIHC/LI

HC/LI

W FAIRF IELD DRW FAIRFIELD DR

MISS ION
RD

MARK ET
ST

W CROSS STD
FA

IR
FI

EL
D

DR

S A INT MARK ST

JOHN ST

W F ISHER ST

W FAIRF IELD DR
OL

L UKE ST

OL D

FAIRFIEL D D R
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 200 400 600

Ft

VRD-2018-01
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



MU-U C

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U
MU-U

MU-U
MU-U

W FAIRF IELD DRW FAIRFIELD DR

MISS ION
RD

MARK ET
ST

W CROSS ST

OL
D

FA
I R

FI
EL

D
DR

L UKE ST

S AINT MARK ST

OL D

FAIRFIEL D D R

JOHN ST

W F ISHER ST

W FAIRF IELD DR

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 200 400 600

Ft

VRD-2018-01
FUTURE LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



W FAIRF IELD DR

OLD
FA

IR
FIE

LD
DR

JOHN ST

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 50 100 150

Ft

VRD-2018-01
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



PALAFOX PALAFOX

ENGLEWOOD ENGLEWOOD

ENGLEWOOD

W FAIRF IELD DRW FAIRFIELD DR

MISS ION
RD

MARK ET
ST

W CROSS ST

OL
D

FA
I R

FI
EL

D
DR

L UKE ST

S AINT MARK ST

OL D

FAIRFIEL D D R

JOHN ST

W F ISHER ST

W FAIRF IELD DR

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 200 400 600

Ft

VRD-2018-01
CRA MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



Public Hearing sign



Looking into 
subject parcel



Looking at the 
adjacent parcel



Looking east along 
John St



Looking across 
John St from 

subject parcel



Looking west along 
John St from subject 

parcel





























it
f.

.

w

^f
ea

t

im
U

'-

h
s

•

i

m
E

fi
M

Ic

H
>^

„•
>

.';
•

K
w

•

i
•

•

••
*

,
a

j:

Matthew Street



Fisher Street



Matthew Street



Matthew Street


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Att1_Draft October 1, 2018 Planning Board Rezoning Meeting Minutes
	Z-2018-14
	Att1_Working Case File
	Z-2018-14
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	ELU Map
	Aerial Map
	APZ 2 Map
	Photos
	Letter of Request
	Application
	Warranty Deed
	Sunbiz Info
	Boundary Survey
	TTO Comments

	Z-2018-15
	Att1_Working Case File
	Z-2018-15
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	ELU Map
	Aerial Map
	APZ 2 Map
	Photos
	Letter of Request
	Application
	Proof of Ownership
	Warranty Deed
	Trip Generation Report
	Pre-App Form
	Boundary Survey
	TTO Comments

	Z-2018-16
	Att1_Working Case File
	Z-2018-16
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	ELU Map
	Aerial Map
	Airport Height Zone Map
	Photos
	Letter of Request
	Application
	Proof of Ownership
	Warranty Deed
	Pre-App Form
	Boundary Survey
	TTO Comments

	Z-2018-17
	Att1_Working Case File
	Z-2018-17
	Location Map
	North Zoning
	South Zoning
	North FLU
	South FLU
	North ELU
	South ELU
	North Aerial
	South Aerial
	Photos
	Letter of Request
	Application
	Proof Of Ownership
	Site Maps
	Scenic Hills HOA letter
	Boundary surveys
	TTO Comments

	Z-2018-18
	Att1_Working Case File
	Z-2018-18
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	ELU Map
	Aerial Map
	AIPD 2 Map
	Rezonings within 500 ft Radius
	Photos
	Application
	Quitclaim Deed
	Boundary Survey
	TTO Comments

	VRD-2018-01
	Att1_Working Case File
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	Aerial Map
	CRA Map
	Photos
	Application
	Fee Waiver
	Proof of Ownership
	Map Submitted by Applicant
	Mobile Home Info Submitted by Applicant
	Boundary Survey
	Photos Submitted by Applicant


